
TOWNSHIP  PAPERS,  MARLBOROUGH TOWNSHIP

CARLETON  COUNTY, ONTARIO

Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
1 10 45 22/02/1798 - - - - - -  - - - - - -

From Johnstown:
"I hereby certify that the following lots appear vacant on the plan of the Township of Marlborough, Eastern District:
Viz: Lots No. 10, 11 & 12, 1st Concession, 600 acres; 10 & 12, 2nd Concession, 400 acres".   The signature is
obscure.

1 0 87 17/02/1789 - - - - - -  - - - - - -

"Extract from the Rules and Regulations for the Conduct of the Land Office Department, dated Council-Chamber,
17th February, 1789."
(copy of the Rules  on Document #87)

6 30 882 16/10/1854 - - - - - -  - - - - - -

Title search indicates that as of October 10, 1854, lot 30 not patented nor has any license been granted

5 28 718 26/10/1827Adams Andrew Jr

Location Ticket, to Andrew Adams, the younger, of Edwardsburgh, Grenville county, U.E.L, to lot 28, concession
5,

5 28 720 07/09/1870Adams Andrew Jr

Abstract of title for  front 1/2 lot 28, concession 5;  names listed thereon are: Andrew Adams Jr., Samuel
Halfpenny, John S. French, David Ford, John Crawford,

3 26 367 28/11/1803Althouse Lucretia

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

3 26 393 03/06/1803Althouse Lucretia

Lucretia Althouse; of Ernestown; Addington county;  lot 26, concession 3; daughter of John Duzenberry, UEL

1 25 124 12/09/1868Anderson Silas

Abstract of Land Title for the lot.  Records a mortgage on the lot.

6 5 757 06/08/1855Andrew Wallace

Andrew Wallace sells to William Caldwell south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; Robert Wallis signs as witness

10 14 1339 28/02/1859Anjou? Edward

6 30 880 10/03/1854Armrod George

wishes to purchase lot 30, concession 6

6 30 885 20/11/1854Armrod Thomas

Replies to letter of  Thomas Hector (Crown Lands, Quebec) that he searched for Susan Wright and found that
she was dead. anmd the son's(?) right was given to D.B. Ford of 'Biggeville"(?), I went to D.B. Ford and finding
that his  - - - - - -  ? - - - - - - - - I went to Bytown and search the tresry office and finding no taxes was ever paid on
the lot.  he lives on the lot and wants to purchase it

3 10 348 02/10/1861Baker james

An oath by James Baker that lot 11, concession 3 is rocky, swampy and sandy and  of little value for agriculture

4 19 514 19/08/1869Baker Archibald

Archibald Baker asks about west 1/2 of lot 18 and east  1/2 lot 19; whether for sale and the price; says that he is
in possession from John Robison who says that he was the purchaser; he has left this part of the country;



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
4 18 516 24/08/1869Baker Archibald

Draft response to Archibald Baker;  saying that west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19 vested in John Meikle of Buttitts
Rapids, by assigment from John Robinson;

4 18 525 23/11/1869Baker Archibald

Letter of November 23, 1869 from John Meikle of Burritts rapids to Crown Lands Department.
he disputes the information in the 'Report' in detail; 

Documnet 527: he submits a statement from Stephen Hurd, J.P., and William Kidd, Reeve of Marlborough
township providing details thatbsupport his position

4 19 540 30/11/1869Baker Archibald

Asks whether  east 1/2 lot 19, concession 4 is for sale

4 19 541 03/12/1869Baker Archibald

Reply from Crown Lands department that a patent for  east 1/2 lot 19 is in preparation for John Meikle

6 5 737 08/01/1847Baker James

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

6 5 738 06/01/1847Baker James

Affidavit before John Pierce, J.P., by James Baker and Thomas Morison that John How has been an actual settler
on rear 100 acres of lot 5, concession 6, since the spring of 1840 and no more;

7 9 919 06/01/1847Baker James

Affidavit by James Baker re: rear !/2 lot  9, concession 7, occupied 2 years by  Archibald Baker, and 6 years and 3
months by Thomas Morrison; Before John Pierce, J.P.

See also documents  #920 and #921

7 9 919 06/01/1847Baker Archibald

Affidavit by James Baker re: rear !/2 lot  9, concession 7, occupied 2 years by  Archibald Baker, and 6 years and 3
months by Thomas Morrison; Before John Pierce, J.P.

See also documents  #920 and #921

7 17 964 12/10/1868Baker Adam

Adam Baker asks about conditions for buying lot 17, concession 7; his address was 'Manacock Post Office,
Ontario"

7 18 974 02/10/1861Baker James

Affidavit of James Baker  on October 2, 1861 that Michael Gorman has resided on the rear 1/2 lot 18, concession
7, for  8 years  has cleared 10 acres, and is the only person to make inprovements to the lot.

7 30 1028 06/10/1852Ballance John

John Ballance applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 30, concession 7; October 6, 1852

7 30 1038 16/03/1853Ballance John

John Ballance has applied to purchase west 1/2 lot 30, concession 7; he is in occupation with improvements; he
is allowed to purchase

7 30 1039 05/03/1853Ballance John

Order-in-Council March 5, 1853; John Ballance to purchase west or rear 1/2 lot 30, concession 7; cash to be
returned to henry Watchorn

7 30 1041 02/12/1862Ballance William

Wm F. Powell to Commissioner of Crown Lands;  on behalf of Wm. Ballance; re: west 1/2 lot 30, concession 7;



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
he bought the lot and paid for it at the slae of crown Lands in Ottawa in October 1861; he wishes to get his deed;
Powell asks whether the east 1/2 is for sale

7 30 1044 05/01/1863Ballance William

J. Durie, Ottawa lands Agent says that an error was made in the auction sale of west 1/2 lot 30, concession 7;
the price was not $1.50 but $0.30. Accordingly the purchase price has been paid in full

6 26 832 20/08/1859Bartley John

Sale by John Sanders to John Bartley of east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6

6 26 837 26/08/1859Bartley John

Affidavit of John Sanders re: east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6; that John Bartley was first person who made
improvements to the lot, commencing in 1850, and that he has been in possession for last 9 years

6 26 841 03/10/1861Bartley John

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

6 26 845 03/10/1861Bartley John

Affidavit by John Gorman and John Sanders re east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6, that John Bartley has been in
possession for 11 years, cleared about 15 acres,  and he acquired his interset from John Sanders who acquired
it from Doyle and Mealy

5 23 706 22/11/1825Baxter Daniel

Certificate that Daniel Baxter, township of Elizabethtown, for 100 acres as a private in Troop of Dragoons, of
Captain Charles Jones, which has been located

5 23 708 11/04/1821Baxter Daniel

Certificate of service of Daniel L. Baxter as a private in Troop of Cavalry of Captain Charles Jones between
October 1, 1812 and April 24, 1813

5 23 712 17/09/1827Baxter Daniel  L

Location Ticket to Daniel Baxter of Elizabethtown, Leeds county, as a private in Troop of Cavalry commanded by
Capt. Charles Jones; for south-west 1/2 lot 23, concession 5;

6 5 761 13/08/1855Baxter Fergus

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew Wallace;  William Mackey J.P.

6 10 770 21/03/1831Baxter James

From Richmond; James Baxter  says that he wishes to purchase lot 10, concession 6, a Clergy Reserve;

9 1 1231 25/04/1846Baxter Thomas

Receipt for rent from Thomas baxter re: north 1/2 lot 1, concession 9

9 7 1259 21/05/1833Beattie William

east 1/2 lot 7, concession 9, William Beattie, is entitled to 100 acres as a discharged soldier from the 90th Foot

1 4 28 02/07/1839Becket Alexander

From Kemptville to the Crown Lands Commissioner, Toronto; asks to be allowed to purchase the lot which
adjoins the lot on which he resides;  will pay a reasonable price for it as valued by a Commission agent.

8 30 1222 06/09/1853Bennett Daniel

Daniel bennett applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 30 concession 8; September 6, 1853

2 19 256 11/09/1870Best William

Abstract  Index summary;  
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15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;

6 5 737 08/01/1847Black? Charles

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

1 10 46 06/03/1798Blake Charles

To David Smith, Esq.
Montreal, March 6th, 1798. 
Dear Sir; 
My long knowledge of you and your family, and your own general worthy character has emboldened me to
address you on the part of Friendship  and long acquaintance to aid me in the recovery of my lands which I am
justly entitled to, and which very wrongfully are withheld me. I served during whole American War in Canada and
at Fort Stannix, and at the peace was reduced in Canada as a Staff Surgeon, for which when in full pay I received
10 shillings per diem and now five shillings per diem half pay. Having been detached with Mr. John Johnson's
Corps upon service, we agreed to draw part of our lands together and as my pay and emoluments were same
as a Captain, it was understood I was justly entitled to my lands as such. My name was placed on the map on
the River Rideau for 2000 acres having got 700 on the Ottawa River and 400 in the Township of pittsburg, but
from accident or design my name on the Rideau is struck out  on the Map, although Capt. Hugh McDonald, then
Deputy Surveyor, for that District declared he inserted my name on the map but unfortunately now no one can
account  what  is become of that map. and I am informed that the Council in Upper Canada on a reference to the
Council in Quebec saya I am only entitled to a Subalterns Land. This must be a mistake. A Regimental Surgeon
formerly was only a Subaltern but as Staff Surgeon having the same pay had then the same right to land as a
Captain. But if my land hitches upon whether I get land as a Captain or Subaltern, I will make it my business to
go to the Governor of Quebec to rectify it. These are my pretensions and these the plain matters of fact in my
case. Now Sir, if I am honored with your friendship on this occasion you may put me in the right way  to obtain
them. The Solicitor General W. Gray has my power of attorney and an directions on this that you give give him, I
am sure he will attend to it. Enclosed I send you vacant lots on the Rideau for 1000 acres transmitted me by Mr.
Thos.   ?   , which I hope you will file up in my name. Captain Munro and many other Gentlemen of the Council &
Assembly knows my name was on the map. Your kindness to procure these lots for me will be attended with an
everlasting obligation. Mr. Gray has orders to pay patent fees at my expense. Mrs. mason is with me. She is
blessed with a fine infantm a boy who was so exceedingly ill as to be in a dying state when poor Mason left me in
the   ?   . The mother and child are both well. Mrs mason joins Mrs. Blake and me in kind respects to Mrs. Smith
and likewise Mrs. Smith Senr.  Am dear Sir, Your most Obed. and very   ?????. 
Charles Blake. 

(Note on the back of the last page:)
The enclosed certificates is for One Thousand Acres. Can I  say so much as that you may give me the remaining
thousand where you please.

6 25 822 02/03/1825Booth Sarah

Warrant issued to Sarah Booth, of Elizabethtown, wife of William Booth, daughter of Jonathon Mills Church, UEL,
for 200 acres.

6 25 824 27/03/1840Booth Sarah

Sarah Booth, of Elizabethtown, petitions for lot 25, concession 6, (details obscure; see also #826 and #828)

6 25 826 29/06/1840Booth William

Lot 25, concession 6;  Much confusion about  the right of Sarah Booth to the lot;  (see also #824 and #828)

6 25 826 29/06/1840Booth Sarah

Lot 25, concession 6;  Much confusion about  the right of Sarah Booth to the lot;  (see also #824 and #828)
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6 25 828 06/12/1828Booth Sarah

Further enquiry re: lot 25, concession 6; (see also #824 and #826)

1 19 83 26/10/1803Boulton D'Arcy

Augusta, 26 Oct. 1803,
If it has  escaped your memory altering the Location on Lot No. 19, 1 concession Marlborough from Shubel
Seelye to Kezia Seelye, I will be much ob'd to you to do it and forward the description. Mr. Stegman by mistake
placed the name Shubel instead of Kezia. Kezia is the wife of Shubel and Shubel had received his land. All this
appears by Affidavit and left by me with you and which you agreed to alter when I was at York in the winter. 
Yours faihfully,
D'Arcy Boulton.

Directed to Surveyor General's Office, York.

2 9 232 21/07/1871Boyd Elizabeth

Documents 231,232
Abstract of title for lot 9, concession2; 
Patent   March 14, 1798, Robert I.D. Gray
Thomas McDermott, James Mulvagh, Samuel Templeton, Sr.; Elizabeth Boyd;

6 10 773 15/03/1831Bradley Charles

From Marlborough Charles Bradley to Commissioner of Crown lands wishing to purchase east 1/2  lot 10,
concession 6; requests reply care of Richard Frayne (?), Master Mason, Merrickville.

6 10 780 29/05/1854Bradley John

Affidavit by John and James Bradley that John THompson in possession of west 1/2 lot 10, concesson 6 . has
been settled on it for 10 years and was the first settler

6 10 780 29/05/1854Bradley James

Affidavit by John and James Bradley that John THompson in possession of west 1/2 lot 10, concesson 6 . has
been settled on it for 10 years and was the first settler

7 13 947 31/01/1854Bradley John

John Bradley applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 13, concession

4 26 602 27/01/1860Brazel William

William Brazel, the younger,  sells to William O Dere, 50 acres of west 1/2 of lot 26, concession4;

4 26 579 06/05/1857Brazil William

William Brazil Sr. to William Brazil Jr., west 1/2 lot 25, concession 4.

4 26 583 19/05/1857Brazil William

East 1/2 of west 1/2 lot 26, concession4;  an agreement between William Brazil Jr. and William Brazil Sr. and
Bridget Brazil, for (apparently) the joint use of the lot.
(much detail)

4 26 586 06/05/1857Brazil William Sr

Sale by William Brazil Sr to William Brazil Jr.

4 26 591 22/08/1859Brazil William  Sr

William Brazil Sr. sells toi John Hanrahan east 1/2 lot 26, concession 4

4 26 594 22/08/1859Brazil William

ohn Hanrahan and William Brazil re: the removal of a house on the east 1/2

1 4 30 01/09/1841Breakenridg
e

James

From Kemptville to the Commissioner of Crown Lands, Kingston; On behalf of the occupants of certain lots, he
asks to be informed as to whether the lots have been drawn by absentees and patents issued, what land is for
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sale, how to apply, prices and terms of payment. He refers to lots 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, on the Broken Front,
Concession 1, all of which are occupied by  men with families as squatters. He notes that the homes of seven
families, with a school in their neighbourhood, are at stake. He asks that in responding, "humanity will prompt
you to give me an answer".

4 11 437 01/02/1821Bromley Catherine

Document damaged, part missing;
February 1821 (day lost on document);  grant  to Catherine Bromley of Charlottenburgh, Glengarry, Eastern
District, wife of Alexander Bromley,  daughter of Alexander Ross, of same place, UEL, lot 11, concession 4,  200
acres.
('Brownley', see later)

4 11 437 01/02/1821Bromley Alexander

Document damaged, part missing;
February 1821 (day lost on document);  grant  to Catherine Bromley of Charlottenburgh, Glengarry, Eastern
District, wife of Alexander Bromley,  daughter of Alexander Ross, of same place, UEL, lot 11, concession 4,  200
acres.('Brownley', see later)

7 7 906 08/06/1827Brown William

Surveyor General's award of 200 acres of lot 7, concession 7, to William Brown of Brockville, aged 24 years,
native of USA, resided in Ontario since 1823, taken Oath of Allegience,

8 7 1081 03/04/1827Brown William L

Adiel Sherwood, Brockville, forwards petition of Ziba M Phillips for lot 7, concession 8 and of William L. Brown for
lot 8 concession 8

3 1 325 26/01/1855Brownlee James

Re; east 1/2 lot 3; Thomas Johnston assigns all of his interests to James Brownlee

5 2 622 14/04/1848Brownlee Robert

Robert Brownlee of Marlborough, sells to William Price of City of Quebec,lot 2, concession 5,  at Bytown, District
of Dalhousie

6 22 812 22/07/1853Brownlee James

At Bytown, James Brownlee applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 19, concession 6,

7 18 967 20/09/1856Brownlee John

John Brownlee sells front 1/2 lot 18, concession 7 to John Johnston; September 20, 1856

7 18 970 09/12/1859Brownlee John

Affidavit of John How and John Hannah that John Brownlee was the first settler and in possession of the front 1/2
lot 18, concession 7, for 3 years and no more. (before Edward Mills J.P.)

7 19 981 01/03/1853Brownlee James

James Brownlee granted license to enter and cultivate east 1/2 lot 19, concession 7,  to redceive deed after
satisfying conditions

7 19 983 01/03/1853Brownlee James

James Brownlee applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 19, concession 7

4 11 448 05/04/1832Brownley Alexander

"Alexander Brownley of the Township of Goulbourn in the Bathurst District maketh oath and saith that his wife
Catherine Brownley, daughter of an U.E.Loyalist, having been located for Lot Number  Eleven in the Fourth
Concession of the Township of Marlborough in the County of Grenville in the District of Johnstown and which
said Lot not being good, he herewith returns the Location Ticket, and requests to be located for the East half of
Lot Number One in the Sixth Concession of Township of Marlborough and the North half of  Lot Number Eight in
the Fourth Concession,,Township of North Gower. 
Alexr  Brownley
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Sworn before  me at Richmond the 5th day of April 1832
Geo  Lyon J.P."

(Note: consider the likelihood that the name is 'Brownlee'; there were many Brownlees in Goulbourn Township,
although probably not many UEL)

6 27 850 30/01/1869Buck Thomas

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Buck Thomas

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

2 18 51 24/03/1808Buck Rachel

A report of the Locations made on March 24, 1808, in the townships of Marlborough, Wolford, North Gower and
Nepean, 15 in all.  Those in Marlborough were: Jacob Fraser, lot 11, concession 1,  200 acres;  Eli Siomons, lot
12, concession 1,  200 acres;  Rachel Buck, lot 18, concession 2, 200 acres;  Mary Smith, part of lot 10,
concessions 1 and 2;  Isaac Stokes, lot 11, concession 2, 200 acres.

2 22 269 30/11/1846Bulbeck Henry

from Burritts Rapids; November 30, 1846; letter stating that they have occupied certain lots for 6 yeasr and have
made improvements:   Alexander Nelson (west 22),  Joseph Stephenson (east 22), Robert Good (west 21),
Thomas Orr (west 20), and Henry Bulbeck (rear 25);   request that they be allowed to purchase;

4 25 572 01/01/1834Bulbeck Henry

Henry Bulbeck and Joseph Stephenson take an oath that Kenneth Mclean has cleared and cropped 10 acres on
lot 20, concession 4. and has built a homer there in which he resides.
Before Daniel Burritt J.P.

6 27 859 08/09/1829Bulbeck Henry

Affidavit of Henry  Bulbesk and Samuel Halfpenny that James Parker has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6

6 27 867 08/09/1829Bulbeck Henry

Affidavit of Henry Bulbeck and Samuel Halfpenny that Samuel Thomas has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on west 1/2 lot 27. concession 6

1 26 127 28/06/1789Buritt Stephen

Certifies that Stephen Burritt is admitted as a settler in the District of Luneburg and may obtain a single lot of 200
acres.

1 26 128 20/07/1791Buritt Stephen

Certificate by Theodor  de Pencier, acting surveyor for the District of Luneburg, that he assigns Stephen Burritt lot
26, concession 1, 200 acres.

1 26 130 06/08/1799Buritt Stephen

Council Minute: Grant to Stephen Burritt of the township of Marlborough, formerly a Sergeant in the Kings
Rangers, 200 acres to complete his Military Lands. "Privileged as M.C. by the Inspector General of ----? ---."

1 27 132 02/03/1805Buritt Stephen

Lease of lot 27, concession 1, a Clergy Reserve, to Stephen Burritt.

1 27 135 01/05/1829Buritt Henry

Letter to Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Crown Lands, Proposing to buy lot 27, concession 1, and asks for
advice about how to proceed.
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1 27 137 08/07/1829Buritt Henry

Letter to Henry Burritt from Peter Robinson saying that the sale of the lot will be postponed until Col. By has had
a chance to ascertain whether any part of it  may be required by the Government  as a consequence of the work
now being carried on by  him.

1 27 139 07/07/1829Buritt Henry

Letter to Peter Robinson, Agent for Clergy Reserves, saying that he is ready to make the first payment on the lot.

1 27 141 03/02/1831Buritt Henry

Letter to Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Crown Lands, York; Saying that  Colonel By has not indicated how
many acres were required for the Rideau Canal, nor does he know whether he ever intends to do so. He is ready
to pay for it and asks for a response, directed to Merrickville Post Office.

1 27 143 26/06/1834Buritt Stephen Jr.

Re: east 1/2 lot 27, concession 1; Sale to John H. White;

6 17 799 08/07/1831Burke Peter

Location Ticket, for Peter Burke of Edwardsburgh, a private in Captn Landon's Company of Cavalry, in the First
Regiment of General Militia, for north 1/2 lot 17, concession 6

9 1 1225 14/05/1846Burke Henry

Receipt from Henry Burke of payment for rent of east 1/2 lot 1. concession 9; may 14, 1846;

2 28 287 11/09/1851Burns James

Daniel Oneil Senr; 11/09/1851;  (damaged document);  assignment to James Burns of interests in lot 28;  oath
of Michael Burns re: Daniel Burns the elder

2 28 292 02/10/1861Burns Wm

October 2, 1861; oath of Wm. Burns and Patrick Gilroy; that James Byrnes is the onl;y occupant of east 1/2 lot 28,
cleared about 5 acres;  and that Byrnes made the only improvements to the lot.

7 30 1031 10/12/1852Burns James

(difficult to read) seems to be an enquiry by Henry Watchorn, of Franktown, about rear 1/2 lot 30, concession 7;
the reply to be directed to James Burns, Franktown, for Watchorn

1 19 81 12/03/1802Burritt Stephen

Certificate of Stephen Burritt:
I hereby certify that Shubel Seelye the husbans of Kezia Seelye has frequently informed me that the Lott Number
nineteen First Concession in the Township of marlborough was petitioned for his wife Kezia Seelye and that the
Certificate which was obtained from the Land Bord was not filled(?). 
Stephen Burritt
Justice of the Peace.
Marlborough,  12th March A.D. 1802.

1 22 104 26/06/1835Burritt Calvin

Agreement of Sale of  lot 22, concession 1, 200 acres, by Calvin Burritt to Clennon Burritt.

1 25 122 16/06/1802Burritt Daniel  Jr.

Letter  to D.W. Smith, Surveyor General. Says that the Commissioners granted him only 100 acres of  lot 25,
concession 1, but his claim was for the whole 200 acres. Says that Samuel Sherwood says that the 200 acre
clain passed the Board. Says that he has Certificate and deed. Asks that he be given time to see Mr. Sherwood
and find where the mistake is.

1 27 150 09/10/1846Burritt Stephen

Document recoerding the sale by Stephen Burritt of his interests in the east 1/2 lot 27, concession 1, to Volney
Waldo. Affidavit before Daniel Burritt.

1 30 212 02/04/1829Burritt Stephen

A statement sent by Burritt to Alpheas Jones regarding the rent that he has  paid on the lot from 1809 to 1819.



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
2 12 244 04/03/1835Burritt Stephen

March 4, 1835;  Oath of Stephen and William Burritt, J.P.'s, that no settlement duties have been performed on the
rear half of lot 12, concession 2;

2 21 270 01/11/1846Burritt Hy

from Oxford, November 1846, Hy Burritt;' certificate that Joseph Stephenson, Alexander nelson and Robert Good,
reside on and have improved lots 20 and 22; good character, loyalty, honesty and industry

2 25 283 28/03/1849Burritt Daniel

Daniel Burritt; from Burritts Rapids; March 28, 1849; re: lot 25; request to purchase

3 26 396 03/09/1838Burritt Edmund

Transfer; Edmund Burritt of Wolford to  Thomas Court of Montreal; lot 26, concession3

4 12 453 04/11/1835Burritt William

Jesse   Thompkins, of Oxford, appoints Stephen Burritt, the younger, as his attorney to locate 100 cres for his
service as a private in Flank Company of Second Regiment Grenville Militia; witness William Burritt

4 12 458 07/04/1836Burritt Edmund

Benjamin Kilborn of Kitley appoints Edmund Burritt as attorney  to locate 100 acres for service with Flank
Company 2nd Regiment Leeds Militia

5 24 715 17/11/1829Burritt Henry

Order-in-Council extends time for 6 months to perform settlement duties on lot 24, concession 5

8 20 1182 25/04/1835Burritt William

Affidavit of William Burritt and Stephen Burritt Jr. that lot 20, concession 8, is not fit for settlement; April 25, 1835

8 20 1182 25/04/1835Burritt Stephen Jr

Affidavit of William Burritt and Stephen Burritt Jr. that lot 20, concession 8, is not fit for settlement; April 25, 1835

1 29 177 13/03/1828Burritt Stephen

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

1 29 177 13/03/1828Burritt Henry

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
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A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

1 29 177 13/03/1828Burritt Daniel

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

8 18 1173 27/05/1854Burrows James

William Johnston sells west 1/2 lot 18, concession 8, to William Burrows of Huntley; May 25, 1854

2 28 291 25/08/1859Bynres James

Oath of Daniel O Neil that he sold part of lot 28 to James Byrnes in 1851

8 26 1213 10/09/1855Byrne james

James Byrne sells to James Gorman, both of Marlborough, west 1/2 lot 26, concession 8; September 10, 1855

2 28 292 02/10/1861Byrnes James

October 2, 1861; oath of Wm. Burns and Patrick Gilroy; that James Byrnes is the onl;y occupant of east 1/2 lot 28,
cleared about 5 acres;  and that Byrnes made the only improvements to the lot.

6 27 850 30/01/1869Byrnes James

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Byrnes James

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson
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5 8 654 14/01/1841Caldwell William

Petition of William Caldwell; of Ramsay township; 
Re; west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5
Order that the name of John McDaniel be erased as Locatee of this lot and that of John McDonadl be substituted
as Private in Captain Jones Troop of Militia during the late War with the United States of America so that a patent
can issue to his assignee agreeably;

5 8 657 22/11/1841Caldwell William

Grant to William Caldwell of west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5; (there is a note on the form that "John McDonald a
private in Capt Jones' Troop of Cavalry during the late war Original Nominee")

6 5 741 08/04/1862Caldwell William

William Caldwell sells to Henry  meredith of Pakenham township, Lanark, fron 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; related
affidavit by Mathew meredith, Pakenham township.

6 5 757 06/08/1855Caldwell William

Andrew Wallace sells to William Caldwell south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; Robert Wallis signs as witness

6 5 761 13/08/1855Caldwell William

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew  William Mackey J.P.

7 15 957 11/03/1852Caldwell William

Solomon Perrin writes from Smiths Falls re: west 1/2 lot 15, concession7, to say that he was located for it  on
December 21, 1827, as a discharged corporal of Incorporated Militia. Since then he sold the lot to Patrick
Gilhooley, of Montague and undertook to give him a deed; when Gilhooley went to improve the lot he found
William Caldwell in posession by authority, he said, of the Land Agent;  requests that the Crown Lands Office
confirm his right to the land based on his service at Lundy's Lane

6 30 883 24/10/1854Camel(?) John

Submission by John Camel(?) and Joseph Camel(?) that they were the first persons to clear and improve lot 30,
concession 6; about 6 acres on the lot and sold it to Thomas Ormrod June 6, 1854, who occupies it since

6 30 883 24/10/1854Camel(?) Joseph

Submission by John Camel(?) and Joseph Camel(?) that they were the first persons to clear and improve lot 30,
concession 6; about 6 acres on the lot and sold it to Thomas Ormrod June 6, 1854, who occupies it since

4 26 587 16/08/1859Campbell Wm

Certificate of William Kidd, Town Reeve, Dennis Collins, Township Councillor, Roger Percival, J.P., and Wm.
Campbell, Provincial Land Surveyor;  that, as to lot 26, concession 4, they are well acquainted with the lot
occupied by John Hanrahan since 1846, poor lot, inferior soil,almost covered with stones; Thomas Hanrahan
the present occupant is poor but honest man; great deal of hard work, to reclaim it from wildreness;

8 26 1204 30/09/1833Campbell Wm

Wm Campbell, surveyor, examined lot 26, concession 8, describes it's nature and provides a suggested
valuation

2 28 299 22/02/1843Canada Co

lease by the Canada Company to Michael Chester of east 1/2 lot 29;

2 29 304 23/02/1843Canada Co

Document 304; February 23, 1843; lease by Canada Company to Frederick Weedmark, the Younger;  of west 1/2
lot 29.

4 20 550 29/11/1852Cassels Henry

Henry Cassels applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 20, concession 4
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4 20 552 05/04/1856Cassels Henry

Henry Cassels sells to John Cassels front 1/2 east 1/2 of lot 20 concession 4;

5 18 684 11/02/1861Castle Jane

William Robbinson and Jane Castle,widow of Henry Castle, release all of their interests in lot 18, concession 5,
to Dr. William Howey of Oxford township.

2 12 249 02/03/1835Castles John

March 2, 1835, from Richmond; John Castles has made improvements to the north half of lot 12, concession 2
and requests to purchase it.  Asks that response be direted to Captn Lewis

3 10 347 02/10/1846Castles John

an oath by D. Collins, John Castles and James Robinson concerning east 1/2 lot 10, concession 3;

4 17 466 12/01/1853Castles Henry

Survey of west 1/2 lot 17, concession 4 for Henry Castles; 
Document 465 is the Plan produced by Francis Jones, P.L.S.; indicating the location of the Castle residense and
2 acres of improved land; 
Document 466 is Francis Jones' certificate that the survey was at Castle's request, that he has occupied the lot
for about a year, resides on it and has about 2 acres cleared.

4 17 469 01/03/1853Castles Henry

A letter from J. Durie, Ottawa Agency, to Crown Lands Commissioner, Quebec, listing 5 persons (occupants) to
whom certain lots might be sold:
John Robison W1/2 18
Patrick Fitzpatrick E1/2 18
George Shepherd E1/2 19
Henry Castles W1/2 17
Robert Stafford (?) E1/2 17

2 29 299 22/02/1843Chester Michael

lease by the Canada Company to Michael Chester of east 1/2 lot 29;

1 3 24 01/07/1844Chisolm Mr

A letter regarding the Broken Front of the lot, a Clergy Reserve lot; to the Lands Commisision at Montreal. He
says that a Mr. Chisholm had squatted on the lot  7 or 8 years since and made small improvements. He wishes
to purchase the lot and the improvements but, with a large family, does not wish to do anything contrary to the
Governments wishes. He asks for permission to occupy the lot until the Government  has inspected and valued
the property at which time, as the occupant, he would have first chance to purchase it at the upset price.

6 25 822 02/03/1825Church Jonathon M

Warrant issued to Sarah Booth, of Elizabethtown, wife of William Booth, daughter of Jonathon Mills Church, UEL,
for 200 acres.

6 25 826 29/06/1840Church Jonathon M

Lot 25, concession 6;  Much confusion about  the right of Sarah Booth to the lot;  (see also #824 and #828)

5 28 726 08/05/1821Clark Duncan

Certificate re: Duncan Clark, Matilda township, is entitled to land as a Lieutenant in the Incorporated Militia for 2
years until the reduction in march 1815

5 30 727 19/11/1832Clark Duncan

Grant to Duncan Clark of matilda, Dundas county, as a lieutenant in Incorporated Militia, lot 7, concession 8, lot
30, concession 5, and west 1/2 lot 30, concession 7, all in marlborough, 500 acres

5 2 617 28/07/1831Climie Robert

Robert Climie, of Perth, asks to buy lot 2, concession 5
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5 2 619 09/08/1831Climie Robert

Request to Hon. Peter Robinson, to purchase lot 2, concession 5; 
Address: Dalhousie, by Lanark

3 10 347 02/10/1846Collins D

an oath by D. Collins, John Castles and James Robinson concerning east 1/2 lot 10, concession 3;

4 26 587 16/08/1859Collins Dennis

Certificate of William Kidd, Town Reeve, Dennis Collins, Township Councillor, Roger Percival, J.P., and Wm.
Campbell, Provincial Land Surveyor;  that, as to lot 26, concession 4, they are well acquainted with the lot
occupied by John Hanrahan since 1846, poor lot, inferior soil,almost covered with stones; Thomas Hanrahan
the present occupant is poor but honest man; great deal of hard work, to reclaim it from wildreness;

6 27 848 04/02/1869Conlin Bernard

Bernard Conlin says that he went into possession of frony 1/2 lot 27, concession 6, on March 16, 1849 and
continue in possession to the present

6 27 850 30/01/1869Conlin Bernard

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Conlin Bernard

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

5 23 701 22/02/1821Connel John

Certificate that John Connel, township of Yonge, Johnstown District; is entitled to land based on service in the
late incorporated Militia during the space of 2 years and discharged 24 March, 1815

5 23 703   /  /Connel John

Location Ticket; John Connel, township of Yonge, Leeds county, a private in the Incorporated Militia, is assigned
north east 1/2 lot 23, concession 5.

2 28 289 03/05/1852Costello Catherine

May 3, 1852; Dennis  O'Neil and his wife Catherine Costello; to Patrick Gilroy; all interests in lot 28;

9 24 1303   /  /Costello John

Reference to "Petirions" re lot 24, concession 9

9 24 1305 10/03/1830Costello John

John Costello; re: lot 24, concession 9: (the letter is difficult to read but this is approximately the text -  see also
#1308)

"Sir John Colbourn, Gov. of Upper Canada
I humbly beg leave to inform your excellency that in July last year  your excellency, Colonel  By, Bishop McDonnell,
etc, etc, etc, was coming up the lines of the canal towards Merricks Mills when I come before your Excellency and
applied concerning a lot of land I possessed in the in the township of  Marlborough 9 concession No. 24 lot all in
bush. I am clearing and working since the 3rd of  November 1828. This day your Excellency asked my name I
answered John Costello and also asked how many sons and how many daughters I answered four sons and
five daughters I understand one of the Gentlemen entered my name in his book and the name of the township
and lot. In January last Captain Lewis of Richmond told me himself lately got a location ticket of it and also told
me right to your Excellency about it and mention in the wrighting that himself  would take a lot from Government
in place of it. sooner than he would trouble me. When he heard that I had 9 orphans and came out May 1828.
Then I sent a letter from the post of Richmond by Captain Lewis and paid 1-2 Postage and got no answer. I
request your Excellency will consider and look into myself and my family for I have no money at prest to deal with
Mr. Lewis. for what money myself and some of my children earn I had to pay it to them that gave me provisions
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last year for if  I am  dispossessed after all my trouble I dont know what to do. nor even I cannot pay postage out
of this at present however I will expect an answer to this in Richmond Post Office by y'r Charity;
Marlborough march 10th 1830
John Costello"

9 24 1308 05/01/1830Costello John

John Costello writes to Sir John Colbourn, Governor of Upper Canada (obviously by someone else's hand; see
also #1305 which was crudely written). There is a similarity between this letter of January 5, 1830 (#1308) and
John Costello's letter of March 10, 1830; (#1305). This letter was probably the model that John Costello used to
draft his. In this submission Costello says that Captain Lewis suggested to him that he write to the Governor and
say that he  (Lewis) would not disturb him if he (i.e. Lewis) got a lot in replacement  for the one that Costello has
occupied and improved. Costello also says that " .......  my neighbours possessed here 6 years ago and got their
deeds less than 2 years time without paying any money. names Thomas Enright, Thomas Moore, Timothy
Hagerty and James O'Neil for they gave their Vote to some Gentlemen who brought them their deeds. Unless
your excellency will do something for me or let me know what to do concerning my land I dont know what will
myself and my 9 orphans do if I am dispossessed  as I have no money for it is in May 1828 I landed in Quebec It
is charity for your Excellency to let me know what I will do for 5 of my children is helpless(?), the next post office to
me is Richmond ..."

9 24 1310 18/08/1830Costello John

This appears to be a letter from the Governor's office to Crown Lands Office. The letter's date may be either 1830
or 1836. The writing is , in places, difficult to decipher; Generally it says this:

"My dear Sir;
His Excellency believes that Costello had received his grant in lieu of the one which he took pssession of without
authority. Mr. Costello was told enquiry should be made and if the Lot 24, 9th Concession of Marlborough was
not granted, that he should be permitted to settle on it but he never was encouraged as he states to go upon the
land.
Will you let me know whether I, or you, shall write to him.
Yours Truly,
 ------- ? ------

To Commissioner of Crown Lands

His Excellency thinks that he should have a lot somewhere"

3 26 396 03/09/1838Court Thomas

Transfer; Edmund Burritt of Wolford to  Thomas Court of Montreal; lot 26, concession3

8 7 1092 17/10/1870Cowan William

Tax sale of front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8, to William Cowan;

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 -1142  - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1097 17/05/1871Cowan William

County Treasurer to Crown Lands Office May 17, 1871; says that rear 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 sold for taxes
October 23, 1861 to Robert Hanly (?); also West 1/2 to Richard Gavin; on September 17, 1869 front 1/2 sold for
taxes to William Cowan

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1099 02/06/1871Cowan William

Letter form William Cowan to Crown Lands office re: west 1/2 lot 7, concession 8; summarizes the facts of the
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case and regards his title as good;

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

10 29 1352 25/01/1836Craig Robert

Robert Craif writes from Richmond as to whether lot 29, concession 10, is vacant  and if available

10 29 1353 05/02/1836Craig Robert

draft reply to letter of January 25; the lot is vacant but can only be obtained at public auction

1 10 36 30/09/1839Crawford Robert

From Perth to Hon. R.B. Sullivan, Commissioner of Lands, Toronto. He has heard that the lot is for sale and he
wants to know the time,  place and terms  of the sale; and if it is not Crown-owned, to whom to apply to purchase
it.

5 28 720 07/09/1870Crawford john

Abstract of title for  front 1/2 lot 28, concession 5;  names listed thereon are: Andrew Adams Jr., Samuel
Halfpenny, John S. French, David Ford, John Crawford,

9 3 1237 02/05/1832Crown Land ----

Peter Robinson replies to Lewis letter of 19/04/1832 on behalf of John Moore: says that Alexander Montgomery
(letter of 30/05/1830) has an interest in the lot and Moore's request to leqase entire lot 3, concession 9, must be
delayed

4 8 425 05/12/1868Crown
Lands Re: Mackey Enquiry; lot 8, concession 4, was described for patent about 1795 in the name of Major (or Col)

James Gray.

8 4 1064 27/02/1868Crown
Lands

- - - - - -

To Malloch, Ottawa, re: front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8; says that to issue a corrected patent, the original deed to
'James' Livingston must be returned;

8 24 1194 09/08/1894Crown
Lands

__

Kidd, Blanchet, & Rutherford , Ottawa, ask if west 1/2 lot 24, concession 8, was patented and to whom

Note: 'Rutherford', originally from Osgoode, later was the 1st premier of Alberta when it became a province in
1905;

8 24 1195 17/08/1894Crown
Lands

----

Reply to #1194, patent for west 1/2 lot 24, concession 8, to James Butler, April 30, 1828

6 27 850 30/01/1869Daley Patrick

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Daley Patrick

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

5 4 639 04/10/1830Davis Solomon

Lot 4, concession 5, a clergy reserve; to Peter Robinson; is the lot for sale?; his brother would occupy 1/2 of the
200 acres

1 18 70 09/09/1818De Pencier Theodor

Land Grant to Theodor De Pencier, of William Henry in the Province of Lower Canada,  lot No. 18 in the 1st
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concession and Broken Front, about 230 acres.

1 18 72 21/09/1818De Pencier Theodor

Order-in-Council of 21/09/1818 authorising a grant of lot 18 of concession No 1, with Broken Front, to Theodor
De Pencier of William Henry, in Lower Canada, formerly a lieutenant who served His majesty during the first
American War in a German Regiment and latterly as a surveyor in the Canadas.

1 18 74 17/11/1818De Pencier Theodor

Land Grant  to Theodor De Pencier, now of William Henry in Lower Canada, Provincial Surveyor in both
Canadas, lot 18, concession No. 1 and Broken Front, 265 acres.

8 25 1198 04/10/1832De Will Stephen

Deed from Stephen De Witt to John and Thomas Enright re: east 1/2 lot 25, concession 8; October 4, 1832;

6 5 737 08/01/1847Dilworth William

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

3 12 356 19/08/1846Donaho MIchael

Michael Donaho requests to know whether  the patent for lot 12, concession 3, has been issued and to whom; or
if it is available for location; direct reply to Richmond P.O.

4 22 565 06/03/1855Donelly Robert

Robert Donelly; sold west 1/2 lot 22, concession 4, to William O Dere

9 1 1227 05/02/1855Donnelly Thomas Sr

Quit Claim: February 5, 1855; Thomas Donnally Sr, transferred east 1/4 lot 1, concession 9, to Thomas Donnally
Jr;  Attested to by John Johnston, North Gower

9 1 1227 05/02/1855Donnelly Thomas Jr

Quit Claim: February 5, 1855; Thomas Donnally Sr, transferred east 1/4 lot 1, concession 9, to Thomas Donnally
Jr;  Attested to by John Johnston, North Gower

9 1 1233 14/05/1846Donnelly Thomas

rent for south 1/2 lot 1, concession 9, from Thomas Donnelly' May 14, 1846

6 26 839 28/04/1841Doyle Thomas

Sale by George, Patt and James Mealy of lot 26. concession 6, to Thomas Doyle

6 26 841 03/10/1861Doyle Thomas

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

6 26 843 31/10/1849Doyle Thomas

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

8 17 1165 05/11/1862Driscoll Thomas

Applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 17, concession 8; November 5, 1862

7 2 892 17/08/1830Duke Francis

From Richmond;   Francis Duke applies to purchase clergy reserve lot 2, concession 7; asks that the reply be
directed to Richmond Military Settlement;

(there is a note on the letter that "The Lot two has been applied for by John Johnston and Bryan B Kennedy to
purchase. Applicanys are recommended by the Council for a Lease")
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7 2 893 02/11/1830Duke Francis

Reply of Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Lands; to Francis Duke, at Richmond Military Settlement; re: lot 2,
concession 7, a clergy reserve; says that names of John Johnston and Bryan Kennedy are entered  as
recommended for a lease and they may either lease or buy.

10 7 1336 11/01/1834Dunbar John

Affidavit of John Pierce and John Dunbar: that lots 6 and 7 in concession 10 are unfit to settle and from 10 to 14
are equally bad

5 8 649 14/03/1840Duncan Sarah

(See #653 for clearer copy) - Oath by Sarah Duncan, Ramsay township, Bathurst District, wife of Peter Duncan,
that the west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5, has a small log building house in which the present occupant resides, a
cow house, and upwards of 5 acres cleared and sowed with grain

5 8 653 14/03/1840Duncan Sarah

identical to #649

1 30 214 04/06/1832Dunn James

States that he has been in possession of the lot for eight years, that he purchased it from Henry Burritt
(remainder illegible)

9 16 1275 03/03/1829Dusler(?) Mary

Location Ticket for lot 16, concession 9, to Mary Dusler(?) of Cornwall; a daughter of William Dusler(?) UEL; 200
acres;  March 3, 1829

2 12 247 22/11/1837Edwards Robert

November 22, 1837; Oath of Robert Edwards, Oxford township, that there are no improvements on the rear 1/2 of
lot 12, concession 2; and no one lives on it and never did

2 12 251 27/07/1838Edwards Robert

July 27, 1838; from Perth; Robert Edwards requests to purchase north 1/2 of lot 12, concession2,; says that he
has already settled on it;  (there is a note on the letter that William Montgomery's application is before Council)

6 29 874 01/10/1861Edwards John

ffidavit of John Saunders and James Ralph that John Edwrads is in possession of  east 1/2 lot 29, concession
6, for 6 yeasr, he purchased the lot from Joseph Lawlor and only improvements are those made by John
Edwards

6 29 877 02/10/1861Edwards John

Affidavit  of John Edwards and John Saunders re: west 1/2 lot 29, concession 6, that James McEvoy is in
possession for 4 years, 6 acres cleared and improved, the clearance wasmade by him except for about 2 1/2
acres chopped by Joseph Lawlor about 6 years ago, who abandoned it without even logging it, that James
McEvoy is a feeble old man and the land inferior, no one else has any rights in the lot

7 28 1022 22/10/1852Edwards Michael

Michael Edwards applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 28, concession7

7 28 1024 25/03/1856Edwards Michael

Michael Edwards sells to John Edwards west 1/2 lot 28, concession 7;  March 25, 1856

7 28 1024 25/03/1856Edwards John

Michael Edwards sells to John Edwards west 1/2 lot 28, concession 7;  March 25, 1856

9 18 1299 12/04/1862Egleson P.A

P.J. Egleson writes to Ottawa Lands office to point out a mistake in the price of  front 1/2 lot 18, concession 9

8 22 1191 16/10/1827Enright John

Order-in-Council ordering John Enright of Richmond,  aged 21, resided in Ontario since June 30, 1822, has
taken Oath of Allegiance; awarded west 1/2 lot 22, concession 8
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8 25 1198 04/10/1832Enright Thomas

Deed from Stephen De Witt to John and Thomas Enright re: east 1/2 lot 25, concession 8; October 4, 1832;

8 25 1198 04/10/1832Enright John

Deed from Stephen De Witt to John and Thomas Enright re: east 1/2 lot 25, concession 8; October 4, 1832;

8 15 1158 09/10/1861Evans Jeremiah

William White sells west 1/2 lot 15, concession 8 to Jeremiah Evans October 9, 1861

6 11 783 07/04/1831Evoy Jeremiah

John B. lewis, on behalf of Jeremiah Evoy  enquires abourt west 1/2 lot 11, concession 6

4 4 408 17/08/1855Exec Council

re: Edward Malloch application to purchase lot 4, concession 4; says he derived his claim from Ensign John
Connolly;  Crown Land report says that the lot was entered more than 50 yeasr ago to Connolly but location was
cancelled; recommneds the sale to Malloch

3 22 384 02/12/1867Fairfield W.J

W.J. Fairfield, from Bath; says he was owner of the lot for 35 years but does not have a deed; asks for the identity
of the previous owner;

6 5 735 25/11/1838Farnel ------

Certificate that 'one' Farnel who got James Moons claim to lot 5, concession 6, gave up his right to the south east
1/2 of the lot in November 1826 and Thomas Guest was given permission to occupy it until the government
decided to dispose of it.

6 5 761 13/08/1855Farrell Patrick

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew  William Mackey J.P.

2 5 227 30/05/1866Fee Thomas

Documents 226, 227, 228, 229
Thomas fee; A resident of rear half lot 5, concession2, for 12 years, now applies to purchase it.   15 acres
cleared.  Requests that Ordnance Office records be amended to correct his name from 'Lee' to 'Fee'.   Malakoff
P.O.

10 16 1342 05/07/1856Fellowes G.B.L

G.B.L. Fellowes, from Ottawa, asks whether lots 15 and 16, concession 10, are open for sale

3 15 363 21/06/1875Ferrand Jacob

Reply to Thomas Hart, North Gower P.O that Lot 15 was granted to Jacob Ferrand by patent June 30, 1801

4 18 469 01/03/1853Fitzpatrick Patrick

A letter from J. Durie, Ottawa Agency, to Crown Lands Commissioner, Quebec, listing 5 persons (occupants) to
whom certain lots might be sold:
John Robison W1/2 18
Patrick Fitzpatrick E1/2 18
George Shepherd E1/2 19
Henry Castles W1/2 17
Robert Stafford (?) E1/2 17

4 18 475 08/11/1852Fitzpatrick Patrick

Patrick Fitzpatrick, of Marlborough, granted entry to E1/2 lot 18, concession 4; 

Document 477; Patrick Fitzpatrick applies to purchase E1/2 lot 18, concession 4,



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
4 18 479 12/11/1852Fitzpatrick Patrick

Wm. Campbell, P.L.S.; says that at John Robison's request he ran the center line of lot 18, concession 4; he
says that RTobison has improved about 26 acres on the west 1/2 and erected a shanty and log barn; he has
also improved 9 acres on the east 1/2 and that Patrick Fitzpatrick has also improved about 10 acres on the east
1/2 on which is a shanty erected'

4 19 536 10/11/1852Flood Richards

From Bytown; request to purchase west 1/2  lot 19, concession 4;

4 19 538 24/02/1858Flood Richards

Grant of west 1/2 lot 19, concession 4 to Richard Flood

4 19 543 13/03/1858Flood Richard

Transfer from Richard Flood to William Flood fron 1/2, west 1/2 lot 19, concessio

5 28 720 07/09/1870Ford David

Abstract of title for  front 1/2 lot 28, concession 5;  names listed thereon are: Andrew Adams Jr., Samuel
Halfpenny, John S. French, David Ford, John Crawford,

10 6 1335 15/03/1833Forester William

Location Ticket  in favour of  William Forester, of Matilda, as a Cornet in Captain Adams Troop of Provincial Light
Dragoons. Assigned to him: lot 6 and 7, the west part of 9, lots 11, 12, 13 and 14; containing 500 acres,

1 11 51 24/03/1808Fraser Jacob

A report of the Locations made on March 24, 1808, in the townships of Marlborough, Wolford, North Gower and
Nepean, 15 in all.  Those in Marlborough were: Jacob Fraser, lot 11, concession 1,  200 acres;  Eli Siomons, lot
12, concession 1,  200 acres;  Rachel Buck, lot 18, concession 2, 200 acres;  Mary Smith, part of lot 10,
concessions 1 and 2;  Isaac Stokes, lot 11, concession 2, 200 acres.

4 19 547 05/11/1835Fraser Thomas

Order in Council re: lots 19 and 20 in concession 4, and 11, 12, 13 and 14 in the 8th concession, which were
located in the name of his father, Col. William Fraser, deceased, be cancelled

5 28 720 07/09/1870French John S

Abstract of title for  front 1/2 lot 28, concession 5;  names listed thereon are: Andrew Adams Jr., Samuel
Halfpenny, John S. French, David Ford, John Crawford,

9 10 1276 02/11/1829Frost James

Location Ticket to west 1/2 lot 10 and lot 11 in concession 9; to James Frost of Prescott, 300 acres as Serjeant
Major of 19th Light Dragoons Regiment , July 20, 1825

2 1 217 18/11/1852Gallacher Thomas

Thomas Gallacher's application ot purchase west 1/2 lot 1, concession 2;

8 7 1084 06/04/1863Gavin Richard

Refers to lot 7, concession 8; it  appears to have been sold in 1861 by Crown Lands office and also by the
Sherriff for Taxes at which time he bought 1/2 of the lot; Has a patent been issued? or is the sale void?

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   -the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1087 21/11/1865Gavin Richard

Draft reply to Richard Gavin; re: lot 7, concession 8; patent issued in 1832 to Duncan Clark who surrendered his
rights in 1840; it appears that the surrender was not communicated to the County Treasurer until 1853;' front 1/2
sold 02/10/1861 to William Tremble, the rear 1/2 is unsold;

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142  - the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot

8 7 1097 17/05/1871Gavin Richard

County Treasurer to Crown Lands Office May 17, 1871; says that rear 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 sold for taxes
October 23, 1861 to Robert Hanly (?); also West 1/2 to Richard Gavin; on September 17, 1869 front 1/2 sold for
taxes to William Cowan

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

3 22 367 28/11/1803Gifford Sarah

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

2 28 289 03/05/1852Gilroy Patrick

May 3, 1852; Dennis  O'Neil and his wife Catherine Costello; to Patrick Gilroy; all interests in lot 28;

2 28 292 02/10/1861Gilroy Patrick

October 2, 1861; oath of Wm. Burns and Patrick Gilroy; that James Byrnes is the onl;y occupant of east 1/2 lot 28,
cleared about 5 acres;  and that Byrnes made the only improvements to the lot.

4 17 463 08/11/1852Gleeson James

James Gleeson applies to purchase lot 17, concession 4,

6 26 835 26/08/1859Gleeson Michael

Affidavit of Michael Gleeson and John Connors re:  rear 1/2 of lot 26, concession 6, that George Menly (?) was
first to make improvements to the lot commencing in 1845, and that John Sanders now occupies it and has
been living on it for the past 10 years.

6 27 850 30/01/1869Gleeson Lucius

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Gleeson Lucius

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

2 22 269 30/11/1846Good Robert

from Burritts Rapids; November 30, 1846; letter stating that they have occupied certain lots for 6 yeasr and have
made improvements:   Alexander Nelson (west 22),  Joseph Stephenson (east 22), Robert Good (west 21),
Thomas Orr (west 20), and Henry Bulbeck (rear 25);   request that they be allowed to purchase;

2 21 270 01/11/1846Good Robert

from Oxford, November 1846, Hy Burritt;' certificate that Joseph Stephenson, Alexander nelson and Robert Good,
reside on and have improved lots 20 and 22; good character, loyalty, honesty and industry

4 26 600 22/08/1859Gorman James

Affidavit of James Gorman re: lot 26, concession4; syayus that when he settled in Marlborough about 18 or 19
years ago, the improvements on west 1/2 lot 26 on concession 4, were small and could not have been old;
William brazil is now in possession and has been for several years.

6 26 841 03/10/1861Gorman John

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

6 26 845 03/10/1861Gorman John

Affidavit by John Gorman and John Sanders re east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6, that John Bartley has been in
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possession for 11 years, cleared about 15 acres,  and he acquired his interset from John Sanders who acquired
it from Doyle and Mealy

6 27 850 30/01/1869Gorman Mary Ann

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869Gorman Mary Ann

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

7 18 973 02/10/1861Gorman Michael

Affidavit of Patrick Smith  on October 2, 1861 that Michael Gorman has resided on the rear 1/2 lot 18, concession
7, for  8 years  has cleared 10 acres, and is the only person to make inprovements to the lot.

7 18 975 24/09/1861Gorman Michael

Affidavit of John O'neil and Denis O'Neil re: rear 1/2 lot 18, concession; that Michael Gorman was first settler on
the lot, he settled in 1852, 10 acres of improved land, and no other person has any claim

7 27 1016 03/10/1861Gorman John

Affidavit of John Sanders and John Connors(?) that John Gorman has been in occupation of front 1/2 lot 26,
concession 7, for 10 years, has cleared 5 acres, was the first and sole occupant of the lot and all improvemants
were made by him

7 28 1019 19/10/1852Gorman John

John Gorman applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 28, concession 7 October 19, 1852

8 21 1186 28/09/1861Gorman John

Affidavit of James Hanrahan and John Gorman re: lot 21, concession 8; that about 10 acres are cleared and
fenced, all of which is poor, light, stony land; the bush part is useless with cedar swamp; September 28, 1861

8 26 1213 10/09/1855Gorman James

James Byrne sells to James Gorman, both of Marlborough, west 1/2 lot 26, concession 8; September 10, 1855

2 12 246 22/11/1837Graham H

November 22, 1837;  H. Graham;  from Perth; application to purchase rear 1/2 lot 122, concession 2; 

2 19 256 11/09/1870Grant Henry C

Abstract  Index summary;  
15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;

2 19 259 04/11/1841Grant Peter

Peter Grant:  letter concerning his right to 1500 acres on lots 19 - 26;

8 18 1168 29/10/1852Grant Martin

Applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 18, concession 8, October 29, 1862

4 22 556 16/03/1835Griffith James

J.B. Lewis forwards payment on behalf of James Griffith re: south 1/2 lot 22, concession4;, a clergy reserve;

6 5 735 25/11/1838Guest Thomas

Certificate that 'one' Farnel who got James Moons claim to lot 5, concession 6, gave up his right to the south east
1/2 of the lot in November 1826 and Thomas Guest was given permission to occupy it until the government
decided to dispose of it.
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6 5 749 11/07/1842Guest Thomas

Submission by Thomas Guest to Commissioner of Crown Lands: about 5 yeasr prebious he was put in
possession of front 1/2 of lot 5, concession 6, by government agent, Mr. West; to occupy and improve until the
government  deciede to sell it; he made a road through a swamp at considerable expense; complains that John
Hoe (sic) on the rear 1/2 of the lot has cut  the good timber on the front 1/2 and defies anyone to stop him; he
hears that he is putting a brother on the lot and he (Guest) will lose his improvements; asks for help in the matter
and assurance that he can continue to improve his part of the lot

5 28 720 07/09/1870Halfpenny Samuel

Abstract of title for  front 1/2 lot 28, concession 5;  names listed thereon are: Andrew Adams Jr., Samuel
Halfpenny, John S. French, David Ford, John Crawford,

6 27 859 08/09/1929Halfpenny Samuel

Affidavit of Henry  Bulbesk and Samuel Halfpenny that James Parker has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6

6 27 867 08/09/1929Halfpenny Samuel

Affidavit of Henry Bulbeck and Samuel Halfpenny that Samuel Thomas has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on west 1/2 lot 27. concession 6

10 2 1314 26/02/1831Hall William

Wiiliam Hall applies to purchase lot 2, concession 10; a Clergy Reserve

10 2 1317 08/02/1833Hall William

Affidavit of William Hall that he sold all his rights in lot 2, concession 10, to Edwrad Mills and gave no authority to
Edward Malloch to lease or purchase the lot that he has almost 20 acres cleared and Edward Mills has almost
16 acres cleared.

2 30 307 13/07/1839Halpin Patrick

July 13, 1839 ;Patrick Halpin; says he is occupant of lot 30; a Clergy Reserve; wishes to purchase it

2 30 309 30/08/1839Halpin Patrick

Document 309; August 30, 1839;  Since he has been advised that  it will not be sold,  Patrick McNamara; wishes
to lease east 1/2, lot 30

2 30 311 30/08/1839Halpin Patrick

Document 311:  Oath of Dennis O Neil and Patrick Halpin;  that Patrick Halpin, now deceased, and father of
James Halpin, applicant,  was first settler on west 1/2 of lot  30;  that no other person has claim on the lot.

2 30 313 02/10/1861Halpin James

Oath of james Halpin re: lot 30:
Patrick  Macnamara  settled on the east 1/2 of lot 30 about 20 years ago, made improvemants, died about 17
years ago; his widow continued in possession and married Mathew Hanrahan who died about 8 years ago;
since then the widow has occupied the lot and made improvements; about 30 acres cleared; the only
improvements were made by Patrick Macnamara, Mathew Hanrahan and Bridget Hanrahan;

8 7 1097 17/05/1871Hanly(?) Robert

County Treasurer to Crown Lands Office May 17, 1871; says that rear 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 sold for taxes
October 23, 1861 to Robert Hanly (?); also West 1/2 to Richard Gavin; on September 17, 1869 front 1/2 sold for
taxes to William Cowan

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

5 16 680 24/06/1853Hannah William

William Hannah applies to occupy and cultivate east 1/2 lot 16, concession 5, with a view to purchase

7 18 970 09/12/1859Hannah John

Affidavit of John How and John Hannah that John Brownlee was the first settler and in possession of the front 1/2
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lot 18, concession 7, for 3 years and no more. (before Edward Mills J.P.)

2 30 313 02/10/1861Hanrahan Mathew

Oath of james Halpin re: lot 30:
Patrick  Macnamara  settled on the east 1/2 of lot 30 about 20 years ago, made improvemants, died about 17
years ago; his widow continued in possession and married Mathew Hanrahan who died about 8 years ago;
since then the widow has occupied the lot and made improvements; about 30 acres cleared; the only
improvements were made by Patrick Macnamara, Mathew Hanrahan and Bridget Hanrahan;

3 27 398 06/03/1860Hanrahan Michael

Michael Hanrahan, (document largely indecipherable)

4 26 578 17/08/1858Hanrahan John

certificate of Michael Moloughney??, that John Hanrahan bought the goodwill east 1/2 lot 26, concession4, from
Mrs. Thomas Enright, and paid an amount for ti.

4 26 591 22/08/1859Hanrahan John

William Brazil Sr. sells toi John Hanrahan east 1/2 lot 26, concession

4 26 594 22/08/2859Hanrahan John

John Hanrahan and William Brazil re: the removal of a house on the east 1/2

4 26 596 22/08/1859Hanrahan John

Sale by John Hanrahan to bernard Hanrahan of 50 acres of east 1/2 lot 26, concession 4

4 26 596 22/08/1859Hanrahan Bernard

Sale by John Hanrahan to bernard Hanrahan of 50 acres of east 1/2 lot 26, concession 4

8 21 1186 28/09/1861Hanrahan James

Affidavit of James Hanrahan and John Gorman re: lot 21, concession 8; that about 10 acres are cleared and
fenced, all of which is poor, light, stony land; the bush part is useless with cedar swamp; September 28, 1861

5 11 663 06/12/1852Harbison David Jr

Application by David Harbison Jr. to purchase west 1/2 lot 11, concession 5;

5 11 667 06/12/1852Harbison David

License and permission to occupy west 1/2 lot 11, concession 5, for 5 years under conditions'; Upon compliance
with the conditions,  he shall be entitled to a deed;

2 12 243 16/06/1834Harris Daniel

June 16, 1834; confirms the right of Daniel Harris, Oxford township, to a grant of land  based on his service as a
private in the Flank Company, 2nd Regiment of Grenville Militia, between July 15, 1812 and January 2, 1813;

4 5 414   /  /Harris David

Thos. Kenny ?, John Peirce and David Harris certify that Henry Brownlee left this part of the province last June
and believe that he resides in the London District; that he never cut down any timber nor made any
improvements on lot 5 on the 4th concession (see #412)

8 13 1154 25/11/1873Harris(?) Philemon(?)

Philemon (?) Harris (?) of Kemptville wishes to purchase lot 13, concession 8

3 3 333 04/11/1853Hart Richard

Application to Mr J Durie to purchase west 1/2 of lot 3, concession 3. Deposit included

3 15 363 18/06/1875Hart Thomas

Thomas Hart requests  (North Gower P.O.) whether lot 15 is available

5 30 728 18/01/1853Hector Thos

From Crown Lands office to Daniel O'Connor, Treasurer of Carleton county; asks whether there has been sale
for taxes of lot 30, concession7,and to infordm him that it, as well as lot 30, concession5, lot 7, concession 8,
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and lots 21 and 22, concession 10, (and some in Gosfield township, were surrendered to the Crown on July 5,
1846

6 1 731 11/04/1821Henderson Caleb Jr

Certificate of service of Caleb Henderson, jr. of Elizabethtown, as a private in Troop of Cavalry commanded by
Captian Charles Jones, between August , ______, and April 1813

6 1 732 28/09/1832Henderson Caleb Jr

Grant to Caleb Henderson, Jr., as private in Tropp of Cavalry commanded by Capt. Charles Jones for west 1/2,
lot 1, concession 6, 100 acres.

8 10 1150 16/04/1853Henderson John

Affidavit of John Henderson re document #1149

1 7 33 05/11/1861Hinton William

From Kemptville to the Crown Lands Department. He has occupied the west half of the lot for ten years and
made 'large' improvements and now wishes to purchase the lot.  He has made all possible inquiries about the
lot without success and now asks for  all possible information from the Deparment.

7 26 1009 09/12/1825Hopper Michael

Michael Hopper, of Osnabrook, has been awarded 200 acres as the son of Abraham Hopper, a U.E.L.;

7 26 1011 14/04/1827Hopper Michael

Location Ticket; Michael Hopper of Osnabrook, son of Abraham Hopper, U.E.L.; lot 26, concession 7

7 26 1013 04/11/1829Hopper Michael

Grant to Michael Hopper of Osnabrook, son of Abraham Hopper, UEL, lot 26, concession 7

3 20 367 28/11/1803Hough Jotham?

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

6 5 738 06/01/1847How John

Affidavit before John Pierce, J.P., by James Baker and Thomas Morison that John How has been an actual settler
on rear 100 acres of lot 5, concession 6, since the spring of 1840 and no more;

6 5 739 15/09/1845How John

Certificate by Inspector of Clergy Reserves that John How's name was taken down for rear half, 100 acres, lot 5,
concession 6

6 5 745 29/03/1865How John

John How sells to William How rear 1/2 lot 5, concession 6

6 5 745 29/03/1865How William

John How sells to William How rear 1/2 lot 5, concession 6

6 5 749 11/07/1842How John

Submission by Thomas Guest to Commissioner of Crown Lands: about 5 yeasr prebious he was put in
possession of front 1/2 of lot 5, concession 6, by government agent, Mr. West; to occupy and improve until the
government  deciede to sell it; he made a road through a swamp at considerable expense; complains that John
Hoe (sic) on the rear 1/2 of the lot has cut  the good timber on the front 1/2 and defies anyone to stop him; he
hears that he is putting a brother on the lot and he (Guest) will lose his improvements; asks for help in the matter
and assurance that he can continue to improve his part of the lot

7 18 970 09/12/1859How John

Affidavit of John How and John Hannah that John Brownlee was the first settler and in possession of the front 1/2
lot 18, concession 7, for 3 years and no more. (before Edward Mills J.P.)

5 18 684 11/02/1861Howey William Dr.

William Robbinson and Jane Castle,widow of Henry Castle, release all of their interests in lot 18, concession 5,
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to Dr. William Howey of Oxford township.

3 25 367 28/11/1803Huffnaie? Catherine

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

6 15 792 31/12/1841Hunter Nelson

Return of Locations from 10/09/1839 to 31/12/1841 made by W.J. Scott

6 15 796 18/10/1842Hunter Nelson

Grant to Nelson Hunter, Oxford, son of David Hunter of Edwardsburgh, U.E.L; of lot 15, concession 6;

1 19 80   /  /Hurd Asael

Certificate of Asael Hurd (undated):
I hereby certify that Shubel Seelye the husband of Kezia Seelye has frequently told me that the Lott No. 19 first
concession in the Township of Marlborough was petitioned for his wife Kezia Seelye.
Asael Hurd.

1 21 96 21/09/1803Hurd Asael

Land Grant to Asael Hurd, of lot 21, in the 1st concession of Marlborough township, Grenville county, Johnstown
District , September 21, 1803.

1 21 99   /  /Hurd Asahel

Document 99A summarizes the patents issued in connection with lots 21 and 22 on the 1st concession as: 
D1344C Whole 21st - 1st, Patent to Asael Hurd 5 Oct 1803
D14711 RJ fr parts 21 & 22 - 1st, to John M Caldwell 12 Apr '36

1 29 177 13/03/1828Hurd Asahel

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

1 29 177 13/03/1828James Henry

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
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claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

6 25 828 06/12/1828James(?) Benjamin

Further enquiry re: lot 25, concession 6; (see also #824 and #826)

4 14 460 17/03/1848Jessup Edward

Grant of lot 14, concession 4, to Elizabeth rebecca Jessup, widow, and Hamilton Jessup, exutors of estate of
Edward Jessup, son of a UEL;

3 1 323 21/02/1853Johnston Thos

Appliocation to purchase lot 1, concession 3 with deposit

3 1 325 26/01/1855Johnston Thos

Re; east 1/2 lot 3; Thomas Johnston assigns all of his interests to James Brownlee;

3 1 328 21/02/1856Johnston Thomas

Daniel O Connor was Treasurer of Carleton County;  Lot 1, Concession 3, was sold to James Mulvagh for
arrears of taxes and he was given the deed;  Since then a 'Johnston' was given a license of occupation; O
Connor requests an opinion for the Court of Crown Lands

6 5 737 08/01/1847Johnston Adam

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

6 5 737 08/01/1847Johnston John

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

6 5 737 08/01/1847Johnston Thomas

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

6 5 761 13/08/1855Johnston Adam

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew Wallace; William Mackey J.P.

7 2 892 17/07/1830Johnston John

From Richmond;   Francis Duke applies to purchase clergy reserve lot 2, concession 7; asks that the reply be
directed to Richmond Military Settlement;

(there is a note on the letter that "The Lot two has been applied for by John Johnston and Bryan B Kennedy to
purchase. Applicanys are recommended by the Council for a Lease")

7 2 893 02/11/1830Johnston John

Reply of Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Lands; to Francis Duke, at Richmond Military Settlement; re: lot 2,
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concession 7, a clergy reserve; says that names of John Johnston and Bryan Kennedy are entered  as
recommended for a lease and they may either lease or buy.

7 2 894 10/09/1830Johnston John

Letter to Peter Robinson re lot 2, concession 7; they applied for a lease about 7 years ago; and since resided on
and improved thereon; now wish to purchase; say that they are informed that an attempt is making in an
umderhanded way to obtain possession of their improvements;  asks for a speedy reply since they are afraid of
being deprived of the "fruits of our industry".

7 2 896 11/11/1830Johnston John

Reply from Peter Robinson to John Johnston, re: lot 2, concession 7;  that he and Kennedy are recommended
for a lease; thus they are quite secure in the property and can take out a lease or purchase;  says that he may tell
Bryan Kennedy that he also is secure

7 3 901 23/03/1856Johnston Thomas

Henry Taylor and wife, Ann, transfer south-west 1/2 lot 3, concession 7  to Thomas Johnston, 100 acres;

7 18 967 20/09/1856Johnston John

John Brownlee sells front 1/2 lot 18, concession 7 to John Johnston; September 20, 1856

7 20 988 21/02/1853Johnston Adam

Adam Johnston applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 20, concession 7

7 20 989 22/02/1855Johnston Adam

Adam Johnston to W.F. Powell, M.P.P., Quebec; February 22, 1855; re: west 1/2 lot 20, concession 7;  says he
bought the lot in 1853 from the Crown Commissioner of lands and paid the first instalment; now he finds that the
Sheriff has sold it for taxes said to be owed by a 'Service'(?)'; it is true that Service held possession of east 1/2 lot
20 and half of 19 but never claimed title to the west 1/2; there must be a m,istake and he asks Powell to visit the
Crown Lands office and have the matter put right;

7 20 991 28/02/1855Johnston Adam

Letter from W.F. Powell, M.P.P. in Quebec to Commissioner of Crown Lands concerning Adam Johnston's
problem with west 1/2 lot 20, concession 7

7 21 994 24/05/1853Johnston Adam

Adam Johnston to J. Durie, Ottawa Land Agent; re front 1/2 lot 21, concession 7; says that he paid the deposit for
the lot and asks for permission to enter and cultivate the lot

7 23 1001 24/05/1853Johnston Adam

Thomas Johnston, for Adam Johnston, applies for front 1/2 lot 23, concession 7; to occupy and cultivate with a
view to purchasing

7 23 1003 13/06/1853Johnston Adam

Thomas Johnston, for Adam Johnston, applies for rear 1/2 lot 23, concession 7; to enter  and cultivate with a
view to purchase

8 18 1171 13/06/1853Johnston Adam

William Johnston (for Adam Johnston) applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 18, concession 8; June 13, 1853

8 18 1173 27/05/1854Johnston William

William Johnston sells west 1/2 lot 18, concession 8, to William Burrows of Huntley; May 25, 1854

9 1 1227 05/02/1885Johnston John

Quit Claim: February 5, 1855; Thomas Donnally Sr, transferred east 1/4 lot 1, concession 9, to Thomas Donnally
Jr;  Attested to by John Johnston, North Gower

1 21 99 29/04/1863Jones  Bros

Letter of April 29, 1863 from Toronto, from Jones Bros., questioning the grant to Asael Hurd. They feel that there
was an error and that John Jamieson Caldwell has a right to part of the land so granted. 
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Document 97, a draft letter in response to the above, states that it appears that the patent for the whole of Lot 21
om 1st concession  of marlboro issued on the 5th Oct. 1803 to Asael Hurd and for the fr (?) parts of 21 and 22 to
John Morrison Caldwell on 13 Apr 1836.

8 4 1066 15/07/1868Jones Bros - - - - - -

Jones bros, Toronto, re: rear 1/2 lot 4, concession 8; pay on behalf of Robert Montgromery an amount on balance
of lot

8 4 1069   /  /Jones Bros  - - - - - -

Jones brothers ask that the patent for rear 1/2 lot 4, concession 8 be forwarded to them on behalf of Robert
Montgomery

5 8 645 24/06/1825Joynt? Edw

a certificate, from Richmond, that Edw. Joynt?,  was located by Q-master general on 16/05/1822 for east 1/2 lot 8,
concession 5, became entitled to deed on 16/03/1825

3 10 350 02/10/1861Junk Thomas

THomas Junk and Thomas Mackey; an oath by Thomas Mackey; almost indecipherable; relates to Document
352

3 10 352 25/01/1862Junk Thomas

Thomas Junk sells to Thomas Mackey  east 1/2 of west 1/2 of lot 10, concession 3, 50 acres;

8 26 1205 04/09/1835Kehoe Patrick

An arrangement between Thomas Rocky and Patrick Kehoe regarding lot 26, concession 8; September 4, 1835; 
(the conditons of the agreement are obscure)

8 30 1219 25/09/1852Kehoe Patt

Patt kehoe Apploies to purchase front 1/2 lot 30, concession 8l September 25, 1852

7 2 892 17/07/1830Kennedy Bryan

From Richmond;   Francis Duke applies to purchase clergy reserve lot 2, concession 7; asks that the reply be
directed to Richmond Military Settlement;

(there is a note on the letter that "The Lot two has been applied for by John Johnston and Bryan B Kennedy to
purchase. Applicanys are recommended by the Council for a Lease")

7 2 893 02/11/1830Kennedy Bryan

Reply of Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Lands; to Francis Duke, at Richmond Military Settlement; re: lot 2,
concession 7, a clergy reserve; says that names of John Johnston and Bryan Kennedy are entered  as
recommended for a lease and they may either lease or buy.

7 2 894 10/09/1830Kennedy Bryan

Letter to Peter Robinson re lot 2, concession 7; they applied for a lease about 7 years ago; and since resided on
and improved thereon; now wish to purchase; say that they are informed that an attempt is making in an
umderhanded way to obtain possession of their improvements;  asks for a speedy reply since they are afraid of
being deprived of the "fruits of our industry".

7 2 896 11/11/1830Kennedy Bryan

Reply from Peter Robinson to John Johnston, re: lot 2, concession 7;  that he and Kennedy are recommended
for a lease; thus they are quite secure in the property and can take out a lease or purchase;  says that he may tell
Bryan Kennedy that he also is secure

9 17 1286 09/07/1823Kennedy John

Location Ticket for John Kennedy, re: lot 17, concession 9; a discharged soldier in  Glengarry Fencible
Regiment;

4 5 414   /  /Kenny? Thos

Thos. Kenny ?, John Peirce and David Harris certify that Henry Brownlee left this part of the province last June
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and believe that he resides in the London District; that he never cut down any timber nor made any
improvements on lot 5 on the 4th concession (see #412)

7 17 959 02/10/1861Kenny? John

Affidavit of William Trimble and John Kenny(?) re: condition of lot 17, concession 7, (rocky and swamp)

6 5 737 08/01/1847Kerr? Henry

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

7 9 915 06/04/1854Kettles James

Alexander Taylor sells to James Kettles, front 1/2 lot 9, concession 7;

4 26 587 16/08/1859Kidd William

Certificate of William Kidd, Town Reeve, Dennis Collins, Township Councillor, Roger Percival, J.P., and Wm.
Campbell, Provincial Land Surveyor;  that, as to lot 26, concession 4, they are well acquainted with the lot
occupied by John Hanrahan since 1846, poor lot, inferior soil,almost covered with stones; Thomas Hanrahan
the present occupant is poor but honest man; great deal of hard work, to reclaim it from wildreness;

4 12 456 30/06/1836Kilborn Benjamin

Confirms service of Benjamin Kilborn, of Kitley, for a land grant  as private in a Flank Company 2 Regiment
Leeds Militia on actual service 1812

4 12 458 07/04/1836Kilborn Benj

Benjamin Kilborn of Kitley appoints Edmund Burritt as attorney  to locate 100 acres for service with Flank
Company 2nd Regiment Leeds Militia

4 10 430 15/03/1860Knapp Daniel

Daniel Knapp, rear 1/2 lot 10, concession 4; sold to William Pratt; certificate by Archibald Putnam

4 10 433 24/09/1855Knapp Daniel

Sale of  rear 1/2 lot 10, concession 4, a clergy reserve, by Robert McCulough to Daniel Knapp;certificate from
Barnabas  Mirrick

5 5 643 21/04/1828Lannen? D W

Lot 5, concession 5; Grant to D.W. Lannen??,, oif Marlborough;

7 15 951 25/06/1833Latulip Joseph

Certificate of service of Joseph Latulip; of Edwardsburgh, served as private in the Incorporated  Reg't of Militia,

7 15 952 04/04/1838Latulip Joseph

Affidavit of Joseph Latulip of Edwardsburgh, that the Location Ticket which he received for service in Captain
Hamilton Walker's Company of Incorporated Militia, is lost;

6 29 872 08/02/1854Lawlor Joseph

applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 29, concession 6

6 29 874 01/10/1861Lawlor Joseph

ffidavit of John Saunders and James Ralph that John Edwrads is in possession of  east 1/2 lot 29, concession
6, for 6 yeasr, he purchased the lot from Joseph Lawlor and only improvements are those made by John
Edwards

6 29 877 02/10/1861Lawlor Joseph

Affidavit  of John Edwards and John Saunders re: west 1/2 lot 29, concession 6, that James McEvoy is in
possession for 4 years, 6 acres cleared and improved, the clearance wasmade by him except for about 2 1/2
acres chopped by Joseph Lawlor about 6 years ago, who abandoned it without even logging it, that James
McEvoy is a feeble old man and the land inferior, no one else has any rights in the lot
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1 11 54 31/10/1803Lee Leany(?)

A report of the Locations made between October 31 and November 5, 1803, 2 only. The Location made in
Marlborough was, Leany  (?) Lee, lots 11 and 12, on the Broken Front,  200 acres.

1 11 56 07/11/1803Lee Leaney (?)

Land Grant,  to Leaney Lee, of the township of Lancaster in Glengarry county, a daughter of John Snyder, a U.E.L.
Lots 11 and 12 in the Broken Front, 200 acres. Order-in-Council of January 5, 1798.

2 19 265 07/09/1849Lee Wm  H

Wm H Lee; from Montreal; re: lots 19- 26

1 1 7 22/06/1857Legier Chryostosum

Sale of  rear half of lot by Chryostum Legier (dit Parisienne) to James Nesbitt of the township of Nepean.

8 4 1047 23/08/1845Leviston John

John Leviston from Richmond to Crown Lands Office; asks about lot 4, concession 8;  says the rear 1/2 is good
but the front 1/2 is swamp which would be of no use to anyone but him since he owns the adjacent 200 acres;
says that someone is already settled on it

8 4 1051 18/09/1861Leviston John

Affidavit of Robert Montgomery and William Taylor, September 18, 1861, that John Leviston was in possession of
front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8, and that he has cleared 5 - 8  acres cleared and fenced;

3 10 343 13/09/1861Lewis J B

J.B. lewis writes to say that Wm  Pratt wishes his name to be put down for 150 acres of lot 10, concession 3; 

4 5 412 02/07/1834Lewis J.B.

Richmond: J.B. Lewis says that Wm  Ryan wants to purchase the front half of lot, a clergy reserve;

4 11 439 06/10/1832Lewis George

Location Ticket;
by O/C 09/04/1831, assigned lot 11, concession 4, to George Lewis, of Richmond, 200 acres as a discharged
Serjeant (regiment not stated),

6 11 784 20/04/1831Lewis J.B

Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Crown Lands, answers enquiry of Jeremiah Evoy (#783) that lot 11,
concession 6, located to Saml Barnard, UEL

7 7 909 27/03/1832Lewis J B

J.B. Lewis of Richmond was granted 800 acres in Marlborough; lots 7 and 8, concession 7, complete swamp;
unfit for cultivation; asks to exchange them for any 2 lots in North Gower

(note on letter: lots 7 and 8 located to Captain lewis January 24, 1829)

7 11 934 17/04/1846Lewis J.B.

J.B. Lewis, of Richmond: re: front 1/2 lot 11, concession7; there is a problem about the government  selling the
front 1/2 to the person who presently resides on it and has made improvements. it seems that the standard way
is to divide the lot into east and west parts; that would mean that the resident would have to abandon 1/2 of his
improvements

8 7 1103 03/01/1872Lewis J.B

lewis & Pinhey (J.B. Lewis) says Mr Cowan anxious to have his patent to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

9 3 1238 14/05/1832Lewis J.B.

J.B. Lewis advises that John Moore, George Birtch and Alexander Montgomery have agreed to sivide the lot,
Moore and Montgomery to each take 70 acres and Birtch, 60 acres; 
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documents #1240 - #1253 are related to this situation

9 3 1239 14/05/1832Lewis J.B.

J.B. Lewis advises that John Moore, George Birtch and Alexander Montgomery have agreed to sivide the lot,
Moore and Montgomery to each take 70 acres and Birtch, 60 acres; 

documents #1240 - #1253 are related to this situation

10 2 1319 24/04/1833Lewis J.B

J.B. Lewis writes from Richmond  to Crown Lands re: lot 2, concession 10;
Says that at the beginning of 1831 he applied to Crown Lands to purchase for Wm Hall lot 2, concession 10, a
Clergy Reserve,  the lot had not been valued, he had Hall's name entered on the Books for the lot, Hall occupied
the lot for over 7 years with Mr. Burke's approval and had made considerable improvements, Hall sold his rights
in the lot to brother-in\-law Edward Mills, Lewis applied on December 10, 1832 to purchase the lot for Mills, the
offer was accepted and he paid the first instalment on January 26, 1833, then Lewis discovered that the lot had
been sold and a deed given to Mr. Malloch, Lewis is at a loss to as to what could have induced the
Commissioner of Crown Lands to dispose of the lot to Malloch who had no claim and at a lower price, in
preference to Edward Mills who had a stronger claim having paid Hall for his rights and having nearly 40 acres
cleared with a good house and barn,

1 3 24 01/07/1844Libby William

A letter regarding the Broken Front of the lot, a Clergy Reserve lot; to the Lands Commisision at Montreal. He
says that a Mr. Chisholm had squatted on the lot  7 or 8 years since and made small improvements. He wishes
to purchase the lot and the improvements but, with a large family, does not wish to do anything contrary to the
Governments wishes. He asks for permission to occupy the lot until the Government  has inspected and valued
the property at which time, as the occupant, he would have first chance to purchase it at the upset price.

8 4 1049 27/10/1845Livingston John

John Livingston, from Richmond to Crown Lands office, Montreal; October 27, 1845; re lot 4, concession 8,  his
father, Donald Livingston, applied for the lot in 1843 but got no answer; his father purchased the goodwill in the
lot from Richard Pettapiece who then occupied it;  he and father have improved the lot,  wishes  certainty of
possession before doing any more work on it,

8 4 1053 01/10/1861Livingston John

Affidavit of RObert Montgomery that John Livingston is in possession of  front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8 and has
been for more than 8 years; more than 7 acres has been cleared and fenced and there are no improvements
except those made by him

8 4 1056 18/09/1865Livingston John

Edward Malloch writes to Crown Lands Office re: front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8, on behalf of John Livingston;
enquires about any amount owing and about the patent

8 4 1058 21/07/1866Livingston James

Grant to James Livingston of  front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8; 
Note: should have been to "John" Livingston;

8 4 1059 29/03/1868Livingston John

Cancellation of Grant to 'James' Livingston; to be re-issued to John Livingston

4 5 419 15/10/1852Lyon W.R

W.R. Lyon askes whether rear 1/2 of lot 5, concesson 4 is for sale and the price;

6 13 787 26/05/1841Lyon Geo

Lyon to Radenhurst; relates to lots 13 and 15, concession 6; it is as well a personal letter between friends (it
seems)
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8 7 1101 21/06/1871Lyon Robert

Robert Lyon to Crown Lands office; questions the status of front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8;

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1105 08/05/1872Lyon Robert

Robert Lyon (lawyer) says that William Trimble wishes to obtain his patent to fron 1/2 lot 7, concession 8

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

4 22 568 17/05/1862MacLarnan John

John MacLarnan; grant of east 1/2 lot 22, concession 4; 
Document 569; patent revised to correct spelling:

5 1 612 16/04/1798MacMIllan Elizabeth

Elizabeth MacMIllan, of District of  Luneburg, Upper Canada, having qualified for a grant of 200 acres, is
assigned lot 1, concession 5;

2 30 313 02/10/1861MacNamara Patrick

Oath of james Halpin re: lot 30:
Patrick  Macnamara  settled on the east 1/2 of lot 30 about 20 years ago, made improvemants, died about 17
years ago; his widow continued in possession and married Mathew Hanrahan who died about 8 years ago;
since then the widow has occupied the lot and made improvements; about 30 acres cleared; the only
improvements were made by Patrick Macnamara, Mathew Hanrahan and Bridget Hanrahan;

6 10 776 28/12/1864Macartney George

Affidavit by George Macartney concerning document  re: James Taylor

7 11 938 01/02/1855Macartney George

James Morton assigns his interest in lot 11, concession 7 to George Macartney

8 7 1090 25/10/1861Macartney George

Affidavit by George Macartney and Andrew Nixon re: front 1/2 lot 7, concession that William Tremble is the only
occupant, at least 5 acres cleared and no other improvements

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142  - the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 9 1146 25/09/1867Macartney george

Affidavit by Andrew Nixon and Edward Nixon concerning east 1/2 lot 9, concession 8; they say that George
Macartney is the only occupant and 5 acres cleared; no other improvements

3 10 350 02/10/1861Mackey Thomas

THomas Junk and Thomas Mackey; an oath by Thomas Mackey; almost indecipherable; relates to Document
352

3 10 352 25/01/1862Mackey Thomas

Thomas Junk sells to Thomas Mackey  east 1/2 of west 1/2 of lot 10, concession 3, 50 acres;

4 8 423 01/12/1868Mackey Robert

Robert Mackey asks whether the patent for lot 8, concession 4 has been issued, when and to whom;    there is a
note on the letter that it was issued 25/11/1795 to Major James Gray;

5 2 630 16/08/1856Mackey Robert

William Price appoints an attorney to  sell lot 2 concession 5 to Robert Brownlee; 
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Documents 624 - 631: a seies of documents which result, it seems, in the lot becoming the property of Robert
and Thomas Mackey / McKey

5 2 630 16/08/1856Mackey Thomas

William Price appoints an attorney  to sell lot 2 concession 5 to Robert Brownlee; 
Documents 624 - 631: a seies of documents which result, it seems, in the lot becoming the property of Robert
and Thomas Mackey / McKey

6 5 761 13/08/1855Mackey William

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew  William Mackey J.P.

6 10 775 19/02/1852Mackey William

Affidavit before William Mackey, J.P.by John Thompson and Sandy Taylor, that James Taylor in possession of
east 1/2 lot 10, concession 6, for between 15 and 16(?) years

10 10 346 07/11/1846Magee John

John Magee sells to William Moor 100 acres of lot 10, concessiom10;

4 26 589 16/08/1859Magra?? Lawrence

Oath that  lot 26, concession 4, settled about 23 years, 20 acres cleared on the east 1/2 which Hanrahan
occupies and that the buioldings on the same are worth about 10 pounds. Oath before Denis Collins, J.P.

2 21 273 10/10/1882Mahan Elizabeth

October 10, 1882; lease from Elizabeth Mahan, to Thomas Wilson, west 1/2 lot 21; for 3 years; subject  to many
conditions;  further lease in 1886;

3 4 336 18/03/1836Malloch Edward

From  'House of Assembly'; March 18, 1836; considerable detail about the history of titles to the lot; he wants to
purchase it

3 13 359 28/01/1857Malloch John

John Malloch requests from Ottawa description of lots 13  and 14, concession 3

5 15 677 23/08/1841Malloch Edward

Edward Malloch, Richmond, asks who is deeded for lot 15 in concession 5, and when it was located

8 4 1056 18/09/1865Malloch Edw

Edward Malloch writes to Crown Lands Office re: front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8, on behalf of John Livingston;
enquires about any amount owing and about the patent

8 4 1061 11/03/1868Malloch Edward

letter from malloch to Crown Lands office; requests correction of the grant document from "James" to "John"
Livingston

8 4 1065 20/02/1868Malloch Jno

Jno Malloch to Crown Lands Office; re front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8; asks abpout the procedure to re-issue patent

9 7 1261 11/04/1838Malloch Edwd

Edward Malloch, Richmond, to Surveyor General, re: William Beattie;  east  1/21 lot 7 concession 9; asks to have
the location ticket sent to him;  there is a suggestion that Beattie is destitute;

10 19 1346 03/04/1865Malloch Edw

Edward Malloch writes from Ottawa to Crown Lands office in Quebec about east part lot 19 (28 acres) and  lot 22
(74 acres), concession 10;

5 20 691 05/11/1836Manning Peter

Peter Manning writes from Richmond to Edward Malloch; asks Malloch to discover whether  the name of his
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brother, Patrick Manning, is on the 'Diagram of  the Township of Marlborough for 200 acres of land which I
believe is No. 20 on the 5th Con". Wishes to get Patent deed since Patirck has died. he says that Patrick has
paid for the lot but did not get the deed before he died.

5 20 691 05/11/1836Manning Patrick

Peter Manning writes from Richmond to Edward Malloch; asks Malloch to discover whether  the name of his
brother, Patrick Manning, is on the 'Diagram of  the Township of Marlborough for 200 acres of land which I
believe is No. 20 on the 5th Con". Wishes to get Patent deed since Patirck has died. he says that Patrick has
paid for the lot but did not get the deed before he died.

10 25 1349 10/04/1834Mathieson Hector

Location Ticket re: Hector Mathieson,  discharged soldier of Garrison battalion; assigned broken lot 25, and west
part broken lot 22, concession 10;

10 0 1348 06/09/1834Mathieson Hector

Note on file indicating that Hector Mathieson Location Tickets are cancelled

4 11 441 29/11/1852McCulla William

William McCulla applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 11, concession 4;

4 11 443 15/04/1858McCulla William

William McCulla, transfers rear 1/2 lot 11, concession 4, to Francis McCulla,

4 11 446 12/02/1867McCulla Francis

Francis McCulla (assignee of William McCulla) paid re: rear 1/2 lot 11, concession 4;

4 10 433 24/09/1855McCullough Robert

Sale of  rear 1/2 lot 10, concession 4, a clergy reserve, by Robert McCulough to Daniel Knapp;certificate from
Barnabas  Mirrick

7 12 942 26/07/1854McCurdy David

David McCurdy applies to purchase front 1/2 lot 12, concession 7

7 12 944 01/10/1861McCurdy Widow

From Bytown, by John Montgomery (?), re: front 1/2 lot 12, concession 7,on behalf of Widow McCurdy, whose
husband has lately died; that he paid a deposit on the lot , asks that the widow will be protected in the lot

5 8 650 23/02/1821McDaniel W

Certificate that W. McDaniel  is entitled to a land grant based on his service with Captain Charles Jones
Company of Cavalry of the 1st Regiment Leeds Militia between October 1812 and April 1813

5 8 652 10/09/1827McDaniel John

LOcation Ticket; west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5; John McDaniel of Yonge township, Leeds county; as private in
Captain Charles Jones Company of Cavalry of the 1st Regiment Leeds Militia'

5 8 654 14/01/1841McDaniel John

Petition of William Caldwell; of Ramsay township; 
Re; west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5
Order that the name of John McDaniel be erased as Locatee of this lot and that of John McDonadl be substituted
as Private in Captain Jones Troop of Militia during the late War with the United States of America so that a patent
can issue to his assignee agreeably;

2 9 232 21/07/1871McDermott Thomas

Documents 231,232
Abstract of title for lot 9, concession2; 
Patent   March 14, 1798, Robert I.D. Gray
Thomas McDermott, James Mulvagh, Samuel Templeton, Sr.; Elizabeth Boyd;

6 27 850 30/01/1869McDermott Daniel

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
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Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869McDermott Daniel

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

1 20 92 19/10/1797McDonald Hugh

Report on Locations by Lewis Grant (?), Eastern District. 
Johnstown, 19th Oct. 1797.
Agreeable to yours of  date the 28th Sept, 1796, I entered Capt Hugh McDonald's name on the plan of
Marlborough for the following lots, viz, Lots No. 20, 21, 23 and 24,  1st concession;  & west half 20, 21, 23 and 24,
2nd concession, 1500 acres,  after making the following erasures from the plan, viz:  Wm. Soles, Jr., from Lot No.
20, 1 conc.; Joel Parish, from lot 21, 1 conc.; John Soles from lot 23, 1 conc.; John Rynalds from lot 24, 1 conc. 
To: David William Smith, Esq.

5 8 654 14/01/1841McDonald McDonald

Petition of William Caldwell; of Ramsay township; 
Re; west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5
Order that the name of John McDaniel be erased as Locatee of this lot and that of John McDonadl be substituted
as Private in Captain Jones Troop of Militia during the late War with the United States of America so that a patent
can issue to his assignee agreeably;

5 12 669 18/02/1823McDonell John

John McDonell of Edwardsburgh has as Order-in-Council of October 5, 1818, for 400 acres of which 200 in
umlocated

10 20 1343 11/03/1833McDonell Samuel

Military Grant to Samuel McDonnell, for service as private in Tropp of Provincial Light Dragoons; assigned lot 20
and wst lot 19, concession 10

6 29 877 02/10/1861McEvoy James

Affidavit  of John Edwards and John Saunders re: west 1/2 lot 29, concession 6, that James McEvoy is in
possession for 4 years, 6 acres cleared and improved, the clearance wasmade by him except for about 2 1/2
acres chopped by Joseph Lawlor about 6 years ago, who abandoned it without even logging it, that James
McEvoy is a feeble old man and the land inferior, no one else has any rights in the lot

2 2 223 15/07/1854McGee John

Documents 222, 223, 224;
Sale by him to Samuel Templeton of  rear half of lot 2, concession 2;

5 1 614 19/02/1817McGillis Christy

Grant of lot 1, concession 5, to Christy McGillis, of Charlottenburgh, wife of John McGillis, daughter of late widow
Elizabeth McMillan, an UEL

4 10 428 28/03/1831McGrath Dennis

from Richmind; 28031831: Dennis McGrath asks to have his name entered for lot 10, concession 4; a clergy
reserve;

1 29 177 13/03/1828McGregor William

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

6 19 807 08/07/1831McIlmoyle Mary

Location Ticket; to Mary McIlmoyle, of Edwardsburgh, spinster, daughter of Thomas McIlmoyle, UEL, lot 19,
concession 6

6 20 815 08/07/1831McIlmoyle Eleanor

Location Ticket to Eleanor McIlmoyle, of Edwardsburgh, daughter of  Thomas McIlmoyle, UEL, lot 20, concession
6

9 7 1256 07/07/1831McIlmoyle John

Location Ticket re: lot 7, concession 9, John (James) McIlmoyle, son of Thomas McIlmoyle, UEL, July 7, 1831

9 8 1265 09/07/1831McIlmoyle James

Locatio Ticket to James  McIlmoyle, of Edwardsburgh, as a private in Captain Sanders Company of Cavalry, in
1st Regiment of Grenville Militia; east 1/2 lot 8, concession 9

9 8 1269 10/07/1833McIlmoyle Thomas

Affidavit of Thomas McIlmoyle of Edwardsburgh re: lot 7 and east 1/2 lot 8, concession 9, says that  he viewed the
lots last fall and found them to be covered by swamp and entirely unfit for cultivation

6 27 850 30/01/1869McIntyre John

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 849 30/01/1869McIntyre John

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

4 25 572 01/01/1834McLean Kenneth

Henry Bulbeck and Joseph Stephenson take an oath that Kenneth Mclean has cleared and cropped 10 acres on
lot 20, concession 4. and has built a homer there in which he resides.
Before Daniel Burritt J.P.

4 25 574 26/03/1836McLean Kenneth

Letter from brockville, by Henry Thornhill saying, as to lot 25, concession 4,  that it was originally located for a
perosn called "Mightly?" who  performed no duties and that Kenneth Mclean has occupied and performed such
duties. Can McLean locate on lot 25.

2 2 220 18/01/1865McMillan Joseph

Regarding the issue of a patent  for the front half of lot2, concession2; His occupation was yeoman; his address
was Kemptville P.O., C.W.

1 2 11 20/08/1873McMillen Joseph

Documents 10-21:  Concerning Joseph McMillan's negotiations with the Crown Lands Commission for
purchase of  36 acres ot the Broken Front of this lot and the related survey carried out by John Burchill, Pro. Land
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Surveyor.  On June 3, 1875, he requests that the deed be issued to him

5 12 670 19/01/1853McMullen Robert

Bytown, application to occupy and cultivate west 1/2 lot 12, concession 5, with a view to purchase

5 12 673 07/02/1853McMullen Robert

Robert McMullen sells to John McMullen west 1/2 lot 12, concession 5;

5 12 673 07/02/1853McMullen John

Robert McMullen sells to John McMullen west 1/2 lot 12, concession 5;

2 30 319 06/08/1839McNamara Patrick

Patrick McNamara: request to purchase east 1/2 lot 30; says he is the occupant;  says that Patrick Halpin who
occuoies the west 1/2 has applied to purchase the entire lot;  that he can prove his claim and that Halpin never
had a claim to more than the west 1/2

7 10 926 08/03/1820Mclean Allan

Certificate of Service of Allan McLean, Lieut-Col., raised his quota of men under Regulations for raising
battalions of Incorporated Militia, qualifies for a land grant

7 10 927 16/12/1861Mclean Wm H

concerning Wm H McLean, heir of Allan Mclean re: his tirhgt to a land grant

6 26 839 28/04/1841Mealy George

Sale by George, Patt and James Mealy of lot 26. concession 6, to Thomas Doyle

6 26 839 28/04/1841Mealy Patt

Sale by George, Patt and James Mealy of lot 26. concession 6, to Thomas Doyle

6 26 839 28/04/1841Mealy James

Sale by George, Patt and James Mealy of lot 26. concession 6, to Thomas Doyle

6 26 845 03/10/1861Mealy    - - - - -

Affidavit by John Gorman and John Sanders re east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6, that John Bartley has been in
possession for 11 years, cleared about 15 acres,  and he acquired his interset from John Sanders who acquired
it from Doyle and Mealy

6 26 841 03/10/1862Mealy(?) George

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

4 26 577 26/05/1801Mealy? Robert

wishes to purchase lot 26, concession 4, a clargy reserve

4 18 516 24/08/1869Meikle John

Draft response to Archibald Baker;  saying that west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19 vested in John Meikle of Buttitts
Rapids, by assigment from John Robinson;

4 18 519 13/11/1869Meikle John

John Meikle, of Burritts Rapids, pays principal and interest on west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19 and requests
deed;
1x2
1x4
26x5
1x10
1x50
$196.00
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4 18 521 20/11/1869Meikle John

In response to John Meikle's letter of November 13:
"Sir; In reply to your letter of the 13 inst. I have to state that a recent Report of Inspection of E1/2 19 and W1/2 18, 4
Con of  Marlborough, shows them to have been occupied by Archibald Baker for eighteen years with 45 acres
clesr on each. A patent hterefore will not be issued to you until the Dept's satisfied that no injustice will be doen
to Mr. Baker by so doing."

4 18 525 23/11/1869Meikle John

Letter of November 23, 1869 from John Meikle of Burritts rapids to Crown Lands Department.
he disputes the information in the 'Report' in detail; 

Documnet 527: he submits a statement from Stephen Hurd, J.P., and William Kidd, Reeve of Marlborough
township providing details thatbsupport his position

6 26 835 26/08/1859Menly(?) George

Affidavit of Michael Gleeson and John Connors re:  rear 1/2 of lot 26, concession 6, that George Menly (?) was
first to make improvements to the lot commencing in 1845, and that John Sanders now occupies it and has
been living on it for the past 10 years.

6 5 741 08/04/1862Meredith Henry

  William Caldwell sells to Henry  meredith of Pakenham township, Lanark, fron 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; related
affidavit by Mathew meredith, Pakenham township.

6 5 741 08/04/1862Meredith Mathew

William Caldwell sells to Henry  meredith of Pakenham township, Lanark, fron 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; related
affidavit by Mathew meredith, Pakenham township.

1 29 177 13/03/1828Merrick Aaron

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

1 15 65 18/05/1803Meyers Godfrey

Land Grant; to Godfrey Meyers of Cornwall township, Stormont county, son of Michael Meyers, U.E. lots 15, 16,
and 17 in the Broken Front, 200 acres. Order-in-Council dated 11/07/1799.

2 19 256 11/09/1870Mickie? George

Abstract  Index summary;  
15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;
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6 5 737 08/01/1847Mills William

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

9 7 1263 20/02/1854Mills Wm

Wm Mills applies for north 1/2 lot 7, concession 9; February 20, 1854

10 2 1312   /  /Mills Edward

File note: See also petition of Edward Mills

10 2 1316 26/01/1833Mills Edward

Records the receipt from Edward Mills of first instalment on lot 2, concession 10; a schedule of the remaining
instalments is part of the document

10 4 1322   /  /Mills James

refers to a petition of James Mills

10 4 1324 25/06/1828Mills James

applies to Peter Robinson,  from Richmond, to purchase Clergy reserve lot 4, concession 10, on which he has
been improving for 3 years, with the hope of getting a lease; refers Robinson to Col. Burke for character;
An addendum to the application from Burke says: "James Mills had the misfortune to obtain from me a bad lot of
land which occasioned his settling on the Clergy lot and beg to recommend his application to favourable
consideration. Geo F. Burke"

10 4 1326 25/11/1828Mills James

From Richmond, U.C.; Robert Short, Rector of St. John (Anglican), submits a very favourable recommendation for
Jomas Mills

10 4 1328 13/04/1829Mills James

A letter of April 13, 1829 from Gravely Mills New Richmond (?) to Thomas Bains Esquire, York. Post paid from
Richmond on April 14, 1829.
"Sir
Pardon the libberty I take in writing this letter to you, But from your great humanity I am imbolden (?) to lay my
case before you. I was speaking to you in Wm Hills (Halls?) concerning lot No 4 on the 10th concession of
Marlborough and __?__  Col Burke forwarded a proposal for the offering ten shillings per acre for said lot or the
Estimated Value and certifying  that he ordered me to go on said lot on account of my large family which consists
of a wife  and eight children, I am four years on said lot, cleared about Twenty acres, Built comfortable houses,
paid for Running the side lines and all taxes that come on it since, I raised plenty of food for myself and family
and God has Blessed my industry (?) on said lot. it contains about eighty acres more or less. I humbly hoap you
will let me know if my proposal wil be accepted (?)  or how I am to act as my family is all ____?____until they
hear how this will be settled after all their labour and hardship they suffered on said lot Lot would bring my gray
hairs with sorrow to the grave .  I humbly  crave(?) your interest (?) on the above Business and hopes to hear
from you by return of post. I am with Due Respect  yours  (to Comm (?)).
James Mills Sen."

10 4 1330 06/11/1829Mills James

A letter of November 6, 1829 from  C. L. (Commissioner Crown Lands -?-) in Quebec to Hon'ble P. Robinson,
York, U. C. 
Dear Sir
I visited Richmond, Marlborough and Oxford last September and was requested by James Mills who lives on the
4th lot of the 10th Concession of  Marlboro' to represent to you that he wishes to purchase that lot. It is a Clergy
Reserve I understand, containing eighty acres, I believe. Mills has lived on it more than six years; he is a good
man, and for some time kept Sunday School. He and his neighbours wish to build a school house on the lot and
have made preparations for the purpose and it is his desire to convey to them legally a site for the school house.
He is deserving of encouragement  and I therefore beg to recommend him to your favor. He is willing to give for
the land ten shillings an acre. If you write to Mills on the subject I request you to direct your letter to the care of the
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Rev'd R. Short Richmond. 
It is my duty to you to inform you that several persons in Johnstown and Bathurst Districts expressed to me their
desire to hear from you respecting their offers to purchase lots. I observed to them that I believed your attention to
sale of lots was directed this year to those in the Home District & to the westward of it. 
Believe me, Dear Sir, 
Yours sincerely,
C. L. Quebec".

8 6 1076 10/02/1853Miontgomery William

License to William Montgomery to occupy and cultivate west 1/2 lot 6, concession 8, with a view to purchase;

8 6 1078 10/02/1853Miontgomery William

William Montgomery applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 6, concession 8

4 10 434 24/09/1855Mirrick Barnabas

Sale of  rear 1/2 lot 10, concession 4, a clergy reserve, by Robert McCulough to Daniel Knapp; certificate from
Barnabas  Mirrick

6 24 819 14/11/1838Mitchell William

Grant to William Mitchell discharged corporal from the Royal Sappaers and Miners, the east 1/2 lot 24,
concession 6

4 17 471 13/01/1853Moffitt Robert

Robert Moffitt; 
Certificate of Francis Jones, P.L.S.; re: east 1/2 lot 17, concession 4; that  he surveyed the lot at Moffitt's request;
says that in March of last year Moffitt bought the improvements from William Robison who settled on the lot in
it'snatural state about 4 years ago; Moffitt has 7 acres cleared and enclosed;
See Plan on Document 472;

2 10 235 17/11/1852Montgomery John

John Montgomery; From Bytown; to John Durie;  Request to purchase north part of lot 10, concession 2;

2 12 253 12/04/1838Montgomery William

April 12, 1838; and Order that William Montgomery is to purchase the north 1/2 of lot 12, concession, originally
located to Charles Roger, a discharged soldier from the 56th Regiment of Foot;

4 5 416 01/03/1856Montgomery Robert

William Ryan of marlborough township; rear 1/2,  lot 5, concession 4, a clergy reserve;  transfer to Robert
Montgomery;   Hugh Montgomery of Goulbourn township, oath concerning the transaction;

4 5 416 01/03/1856Montgomery Hugh

William Ryan of marlborough township; rear 1/2,  lot 5, concession 4, a clergy reserve;  transfer to Robert
Montgomery;   Hugh Montgomery of Goulbourn township, oath concerning the transaction;

5 8 659 23/01/1862Montgomery William

Legal firm (Lyon & O'Connor) request information about west 1/2 lot 8, concession 5 which William Montgomery
the purchaser informed us he has paid for through the late local agent Mr. Durie nearly three years ago but has
never received his deed as yet; When will the deed issue?

6 5 737 08/01/1847Montgomery Robert

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

6 5 737 08/01/1847Montgomery William

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.
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8 4 1051 18/09/1861Montgomery Robert

Affidavit of Robert Montgomery and William Taylor, September 18, 1861, that John Leviston was in possession of
front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8, and that he has cleared 5 - 8  acres cleared and fenced;

8 4 1053 01/10/1861Montgomery Robert

Affidavit of RObert Montgomery that John Livingston is in possession of  front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8 and has
been for more than 8 years; more than 7 acres has been cleared and fenced and there are no improvements
except those made by him

8 4 1063 07/07/1868Montgomery Robert

Jones Bros, (lawyers) enquirtes of crown Lands Office as to amount to complete payment for rear 1/2 lot 4,
concession8; and in whose name it stands

8 4 1066 15/07/1868Montgomery Robert

Jones bros, Toronto, re: rear 1/2 lot 4, concession 8; pay on behalf of Robert Montgromery an amount on balance
of lot

8 4 1068 07/08/1868Montgomery Robert

Copy of letter of Jones Brothers transmitting money to Crown Lands Office for Robert Montgomery

8 4 1069   /  /Montgomery Robert

Jones brothers ask that the patent for rear 1/2 lot 4, concession 8 be forwarded to them on behalf of Robert
Montgomery

8 5 1071 11/12/1856Montgomery Gabriel

Affidavit by William Pettapiece and Edward Williams, 11/12/1856, that  lot 5, concession 8 was first occupied by
Gabriel Montgomery  about 1830, that the first improvements were in 1830 consisting of a small log house
(16x18 feet) and small barn (28 x 30 feet);  and 20 acres cleard

8 5 1072 15/10/1856Montgomery Gabriel

Gabriel Montgomery sells to Wm Montgomery west 1/2 lot 5, concession 8,

8 5 1072 15/10/1856Montgomery Wm

Gabriel Montgomery sells to Wm Montgomery west 1/2 lot 5, concession 8,

9 3 1237 02/05/1832Montgomery Alexander

Peter Robinson replies to Lewis letter of 19/04/1832 on behalf of John Moore: says that Alexander  Montgomery
(letter of 30/05/1830) has an interest in the lot and Moore's request to leqase entire lot 3, concession 9, must be
delayed

7 12 944 01/10/1861Montgomery
?

John

From Bytown, by John Montgomery (?), re: front 1/2 lot 12, concession 7,on behalf of Widow McCurdy, whose
husband has lately died; that he paid a deposit on the lot , asks that the widow will be protected in the lot

6 5 735 25/11/1838Moon James

Certificate that 'one' Farnel who got James Moons claim to lot 5, concession 6, gave up his right to the south east
1/2 of the lot in November 1826 and Thomas Guest was given permission to occupy it until the government
decided to dispose of it

10 10 346 07/11/1846Moor William

John Magee sells to William Moor 100 acres of lot 10, concessiom10;

4 26 589 16/08/1859Moor Michael]

Oath that  lot 26, concession 4, settled about 23 years, 20 acres cleared on the east 1/2 which Hanrahan
occupies and that the buioldings on the same are worth about 10 pounds. Oath before Denis Collins, J.P.

4 26 599 18/08/1859Moor Michael

affidavit of Michael Moor re west 1/2 lot 26, concession4; 20 acres cleared, house and barns, about 1000 rails on
the lot'; settled about 20 years
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6 5 737 08/01/1847Moore Andrew

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

9 3 1236 19/04/1832Moore John

J.B. lewis forwards paymnet to Crown Lands Office on behalf of John Moore re lease on lot 3, concession 9;
Applied to purchase the lot in February 1831 and still wishes to purchase the lot;

9 3 1237 02/05/1832Moore John

Peter Robinson replies to Lewis letter of 19/04/1832 on behalf of John Moore: says that Alexander  Montgomery
(letter of 30/05/1830) has an interest in the lot and Moore's request to leqase entire lot 3, concession 9, must be
delayed

1 1 3 22/06/1857Morin Jeremiah

Sale of front half of  lot by Jeremiah Morin to James Nesbitt of Nepean township.

6 5 738 06/01/1847Morison Thomas

Affidavit before John Pierce, J.P., by James Baker and Thomas Morison that John How has been an actual settler
on rear 100 acres of lot 5, concession 6, since the spring of 1840 and no more;

7 9 919 06/01/1847Morrison Thomas

Affidavit by James Baker re: rear !/2 lot  9, concession 7, occupied 2 years by  Archibald Baker, and 6 years and 3
months by Thomas Morrison; Before John Pierce, J.P.

See also documents  #920 and #921

7 9 922 27/10/1846Morrison Thomas

Thomas Morrison sold to William Trimble rear 1/2 lot 9, concession 7;

6 5 737 08/01/8147Morrison? Thomas

Petition of  12 local settlers:
that they are all acquainted with lot 5, concession 6, a clergy reserve, and believe that there is morre good land
on the front of the lot rhan on the rear.

7 11 936 18/01/1854Morton James

John Morton applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 11, concession 7;

7 11 938 01/02/1855Morton James

James Morton assigns his interest in lot 11, concession 7 to George Macartney

2 9 232 21/07/1871Mulvagh James

Documents 231,232
Abstract of title for lot 9, concession2; 
Patent   March 14, 1798, Robert I.D. Gray
Thomas McDermott, James Mulvagh, Samuel Templeton, Sr.; Elizabeth Boyd;

3 1 328 21/02/1856Mulvagh James

Daniel O Connor was Treasurer of Carleton County;  Lot 1, Concession 3, was sold to James Mulvagh for
arrears of taxes and he was given the deed;  Since then a 'Johnston' was given a license of occupation; O
Connor requests an opinion for the Court of Crown Lands

8 20 1181 24/11/1832Munro Asenath

Location Ticket to Asenath Munro for lot 20, concession 8,  November 24, 1832

6 5 753 01/04/1854Murphy Thomas

Thomas Murphy sells to Andrew Wallace south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6, a Clergy Reserve; Noble Wallace signed
as a witness
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6 5 761 13/08/1855Murphy Thomas

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew  William Mackey J.P.

2 22 269 30/11/1846Nelson Alexander

from Burritts Rapids; November 30, 1846; letter stating that they have occupied certain lots for 6 yeasr and have
made improvements:   Alexander Nelson (west 22),  Joseph Stephenson (east 22), Robert Good (west 21),
Thomas Orr (west 20), and Henry Bulbeck (rear 25);   request that they be allowed to purchase;

2 21 270 01/11/1846Nelson alexander

from Oxford, November 1846, Hy Burritt;' certificate that Joseph Stephenson, Alexander nelson and Robert Good,
reside on and have improved lots 20 and 22; good character, loyalty, honesty and industry

1 1 3 22/06/1857Nesbitt James

Sale of front half of  lot by Jeremiah Morin to James Nesbitt of Nepean township.

1 1 7 22/06/1857Nesbitt James

Sale of  rear half of lot by Chryostum Legier (dit Parisienne) to James Nesbitt of the township of Nepean.

6 17 803 08/07/1831Newland Henry

Location Ticket  to Henry Newland of Edwardsburgh, a private in the Ibcorporated Militia; of south 1/2 lot 17,
concession 6

8 7 1090 25/10/1861Nixon Andrew

Affidavit by George Macartney and Andrew Nixon re: front 1/2 lot 7, concession that William Tremble is the only
occupant, at least 5 acres cleared and no other improvements

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 -  1142  - the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 9 1146 25/09/1867Nixon Andrew

Affidavit by Andrew Nixon and Edward Nixon concerning east 1/2 lot 9, concession 8; they say that George
Macartney is the only occupant and 5 acres cleared; no other improvements

8 9 1146 25/09/1867Nixon Edward

Affidavit by Andrew Nixon and Edward Nixon concerning east 1/2 lot 9, concession 8; they say that George
Macartney is the only occupant and 5 acres cleared; no other improvements

8 10 1149 05/03/1853Nixon Andrew

Andrew Nixon sells to William Trimble front 1/2 lot 10, concession 8;

9 16 1282 03/03/1854Nixon Andrew

Andrew Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 16, concession 9, to James Nixon; March 3, 1854

9 16 1282 03/03/1854Nixon james

Andrew Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 16, concession 9, to James Nixon; March 3, 1854

9 16 1288 28/02/1853Nixon Andrew

Andrew Nixon applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 16, concession 9;

9 17 1290 28/02/1853Nixon Andrew

Andrew Nixon applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 17, concession 9

9 17 1292 22/01/1859Nixon Edward

Edward Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 17, concession 9 to Charles Hamnet Pinhey, January 22, 1859



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
9 17 1295 19/03/1858Nixon Andrew

Andrew Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 17, to Edward Nixon, March 19, 1858

9 17 1295 19/03/1858Nixon Edward

Andrew Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 17, to Edward Nixon, March 19, 1858

3 1 328 21/02/1856O Connor Daniel

Daniel O Connor was Treasurer of Carleton County;  Lot 1, Concession 3, was sold to James Mulvagh for
arrears of taxes and he was given the deed;  Since then a 'Johnston' was given a license of occupation; O
Connor requests an opinion for the Court of Crown Lands

4 22 565 06/03/1855O Dere William

Robert Donelly; sold west 1/2 lot 22, concession 4, to William O Dere

4 26 602 27/01/1860O Dere William

William Brazel, the younger,  sells to William O Dere, 50 acres of west 1/2 of lot 26, concession4;

2 28 287 11/09/1851O Neil Daniel Sr

Daniel Oneil Senr; 11/09/1851;  (damaged document);  assignment to James Burns of interests in lot 28;  oath
of Michael Burns re: Daniel Burns the elder

2 28 289 03/05/1852O Neil Dennis

May 3, 1852; Dennis  O'Neil and his wife Catherine Costello; to Patrick Gilroy; all interests in lot 28;

2 28 291 25/08/1859O Neil Daniel Sr

Oath of Daniel O Neil that he sold part of lot 28 to James Byrnes in 1851

2 29 301 29/05/1843O Neil Dennis Jr

wishes to purchase east half lot 29; he has cleared 15 acres;

2 30 311 30/08/1839O Neil Dennis

Document 311:  Oath of Dennis O Neil and Patrick Halpin;  that Patrick Halpin, now deceased, and father of
James Halpin, applicant,  was first settler on west 1/2 of lot  30;  that no other person has claim on the lot.

2 30 315 02/10/1861O Neil Dennis

Oath of Dennis O Neil re: lot 30:
Patrick  Macnamara  settled on the east 1/2 of lot 30 about 20 years ago, made improvemants, died about 17
years ago; his widow continued in possession and married Mathew Hanrahan who died about 8 years ago;
since then the widow has occupied the lot and made improvements; about 30 acres cleared; the only
improvements were made by Patrick Macnamara, Mathew Hanrahan and Bridget Hanrahan;

Note that this is almost identical with Document 313

8 19 1178 05/11/1852O'Brien Patrick

Patrick O'Brien applies to purchase east 1/2 lot 19, concession 8; November 5, 1852

9 20 1301   /  /O'Byran Daniel

a reference to "Petitions" Re: lot 20, concession9

7 17 961 16/01/1864O'Dea Simon

Request for deed for rear 1/2 lot 17, concession 7; payment submitted

7 18 975 24/09/1861O'Neil John

Affidavit of John O'neil and Denis O'Neil re: rear 1/2 lot 18, concession; that Michael Gorman was first settler on
the lot, he settled in 1852, 10 acres of improved land, and no other person has any claim

7 18 975 24/09/1861O'Neil Denis

Affidavit of John O'neil and Denis O'Neil re: rear 1/2 lot 18, concession; that Michael Gorman was first settler on
the lot, he settled in 1852, 10 acres of improved land, and no other person has any claim



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
8 21 1185 24/09/1861O'Neil Daniel

Affidavit of Daniel O'Neil that 17 yeasr ago he sold his interest in lot 21 to Dennis O'Neil; September 24, 1861
(Note: difficult to read; but this is probably a valid interpretation)

8 21 1185 24/09/1861O'Neil Dennis

Affidavit of Daniel O'Neil that 17 yeasr ago he sold his interest in lot 21 to Dennis O'Neil; September 24, 1861
(Note: difficult to read; but this is probably a valid interpretation)

8 21 1187 01/10/1861O'Neil Dennis

Affidavit of Dennis O'Neil, October 1, 1861; re lot 21, concession 8; he occupied the lot for 17 years; bought the
goodwill 17 years ago from Daniel O'Neil; only he and Daniel O'Neil improved the lot;

8 21 1187 01/10/1861O'Neil Daniel

O'Neil

9 21 1302   /  /O'Neil Dennis

Reference to "Petitions" re lot 21, concession 9

2 19 262 09/03/1846Olmstaed Hiram

Hiram Olmstead; re: lot 19;  from Burritts Rapids

1 28 163 27/08/1807Olmsted Jabez

A Council Minute, August 27, 1801) and a Lease (April 22, 1803) of  lot 28, concession 1, 200 acres, to Jabez
Olmsted.

1 29 173 27/08/1801Olmsted Job

Council  Minute (173) and Lease (175) of Lot  29, a Clergy Reserve, to Job Olmsted.

1 29 177 13/03/1828Olmsted Job

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

6 30 883 24/10/1854Ormrod Thomas

Submission by John Camel(?) and Joseph Camel(?) that they were the first persons to clear and improve lot 30,
concession 6; about 6 acres on the lot and sold it to Thomas Ormrod June 6, 1854, who occupies it since

6 30 887 06/03/1855Ormrod Thomas

From Merrickville;  submits required affidavit and asks to be allowed to purchase west 1/2 lot 30, concession 6:
requests an early reply since ".. the spring is coming on and I would want to be making some improvement then
on the place."



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
6 30 888 06/03/1855Ormrod George

Affidavit of George Ormrod and John Suffron both of Montague township,  re: west 1/2 lot 30, concession 6, that it
is occupied by Thomas Ormrod only and that not over 8 acres chopped which 8 acres not cleared but timber
taken away; the timber on the rest of it is principally small tamarac and birch

2 22 269 30/11/1846Orr Thomas

from Burritts Rapids; November 30, 1846; letter stating that they have occupied certain lots for 6 yeasr and have
made improvements:   Alexander Nelson (west 22),  Joseph Stephenson (east 22), Robert Good (west 21),
Thomas Orr (west 20), and Henry Bulbeck (rear 25);   request that they be allowed to purchase;

1 21 92 19/10/1797Parish Joel

Report on Locations by Lewis Grant (?), Eastern District. 
Johnstown, 19th Oct. 1797.
Agreeable to yours of  date the 28th Sept, 1796, I entered Capt Hugh McDonald's name on the plan of
Marlborough for the following lots, viz, Lots No. 20, 21, 23 and 24,  1st concession;  & west half 20, 21, 23 and 24,
2nd concession, 1500 acres,  after making the following erasures from the plan, viz:  Wm. Soles, Jr., from Lot No.
20, 1 conc.; Joel Parish, from lot 21, 1 conc.; John Soles from lot 23, 1 conc.; John Rynalds from lot 24, 1 conc. 
To: David William Smith, Esq.

6 27 849 30/01/1869Parker James

Abstract of titles for east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on the list:
Crown Grant to James Parker, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, John McIntyre, Bernard Conlin, mary Ann Gorman,
Patrick Daley, Daniel McDermott, Lucius Gleeson

6 27 853 05/07/1823Parker James

James Parker has a certificate for 100 acres as private in Captian R.D. Fraser's Troop of Provincial Light
Dragoos, which he has not located

6 27 855 26/10/1827Parker James

Location Ticket; to James Parker, Edwardsburgh, as a private in Captain R.D. Fraser's  Troop of  Provincial
Dragoons, east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6,

6 27 857 08/05/1821Parker James

Certifies that James Parker of Edwardsburgh. s entitled to land as a private in Captain R.D. Fraser's Troop of
Provincial Light Dragoons between February 24, 1812 and February 24, 1813

6 27 859 08/09/1829Parker James

Affidavit of Henry  Bulbesk and Samuel Halfpenny that James Parker has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6

6 27 860 22/01/1830Parker James

Grant to james Parker of east 1/2 lot 27, concession 6, based on his service with Captain R.D. Fraser's Troop of
Provincial Dragoons;

7 18 976 30/09/1861Peel William

Affidavit of William and Patrick Peel re: rear 1/2 lot 18, concession 7; that it is poor  quality, stony and swampy

7 18 976 30/09/1861Peel Patrick

Affidavit of William and Patrick Peel re: rear 1/2 lot 18, concession 7; that it is poor  quality, stony and swampy

8 17 1162 02/11/1852Peel Patrick

Patrick peel applies to puirchase east 1/2  lot 17, concession 8

4 5 414   /  /Peirce John

Thos. Kenny ?, John Peirce and David Harris certify that Henry Brownlee left this part of the province last June
and believe that he resides in the London District; that he never cut down any timber nor made any
improvements on lot 5 on the 4th concession



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
4 26 587 16/08/1859Percival Roger

Certificate of William Kidd, Town Reeve, Dennis Collins, Township Councillor, Roger Percival, J.P., and Wm.
Campbell, Provincial Land Surveyor;  that, as to lot 26, concession 4, they are well acquainted with the lot
occupied by John Hanrahan since 1846, poor lot, inferior soil,almost covered with stones; Thomas Hanrahan
the present occupant is poor but honest man; great deal of hard work, to reclaim it from wildreness;

7 15 955 08/05/1820Perrin Solomon

Certificate of service of Solomon Perrin Of Augusta, as a corporal in Incorporated Militia; and discahrged on
march 24, 1815

7 15 957 11/03/1852Perrin Solomon

Solomon Perrin writes from Smiths Falls re: west 1/2 lot 15, concession7, to say that he was located for it  on
December 21, 1827, as a discharged corporal of Incorporated Militia. Since then he sold the lot to Patrick
Gilhooley, of Montague and undertook to give him a deed; when Gilhooley went to improve the lot he found
William Caldwell in posession by authority, he said, of the Land Agent;  requests that the Crown Lands Office
confirm his right to the land based on his service at Lundy's Lane

2 19 256 11/09/1870Peters Forbes

Abstract  Index summary;  
15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;

2 19 256 11/09/1870Peters Richard

Abstract  Index summary;  
15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;

8 5 1071 11/12/1856Pettapiece William

Affidavit by William Pettapiece and Edward Williams, 11/12/1856, that  lot 5, concession 8 was first occupied by
Gabriel Montgomery  about 1830, that the first improvements were in 1830 consisting of a small log house
(16x18 feet) and small barn (28 x 30 feet);  and 20 acres cleard

7 8 912 08/06/1827Phillips Ziba  M

Surveyor General awards lot  8, concession 7, to Ziba Phillips, of Brockville, 40 years old, resided in Ontario
since 1787, taken Oath of Allegience, Ensign of Incorporated Militia,

8 8 1081 03/04/1827Phillips Ziba M

Adiel Sherwood, Brockville, forwards petition of Ziba M Phillips for lot 7, concession 8 and of William L. Brown for
lot 8 concession 8

6 5 738 06/01/1847Pierce John

Affidavit before John Pierce, J.P., by James Baker and Thomas Morison that John How has been an actual settler
on rear 100 acres of lot 5, concession 6, since the spring of 1840 and no more;

10 6 1336 11/01/1834Pierce John

Affidavit of John Pierce and John Dunbar: that lots 6 and 7 in concession 10 are unfit to settle and from 10 to 14
are equally bad

6 17 809 05/01/1833Pimock(?) Philemon

Affidavit before Daniel Burritt, J.P., Philemon Pimock says that he has viewed lots 17 - 19, concession 6, and
found them unfit for cultivation

9 17 1292 22/01/1859Pinhey Chas Hamnet

Edward Nixon sells rear 1/2 lot 17, concession 9 to Charles Hamnet Pinhey, January 22, 1859



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
10 17 1339 28/02/1859Pinhey C.H

C.H. Pinhey writes from Ottawa on behalf of Edward Anjou(?) who is living on lot 17, concession 10, whether he
may purchase the lot and also he enquires about lots 14 and 19 in concession 10

2 9 232 21/07/1871Powell John

Documents 231,232
Abstract of title for lot 9, concession2; 
Patent   March 14, 1798, Robert I.D. Gray
Thomas McDermott, James Mulvagh, Samuel Templeton, Sr.; Elizabeth Boyd; 

7 20 989 22/02/1855Powell W.F. MPP

Adam Johnston to W.F. Powell, M.P.P., Quebec; February 22, 1855; re: west 1/2 lot 20, concession 7;  says he
bought the lot in 1853 from the Crown Commissioner of lands and paid the first instalment; now he finds that the
Sheriff has sold it for taxes said to be owed by a 'Service'(?)'; it is true that Service held possession of east 1/2 lot
20 and half of 19 but never claimed title to the west 1/2; there must be a m,istake and he asks Powell to visit the
Crown Lands office and have the matter put right;

7 20 991 28/02/1855Powell W.F. MPP

Letter from W.F. Powell, M.P.P. in Quebec to Commissioner of Crown Lands concerning Adam Johnston's
problem with west 1/2 lot 20, concession 7

4 10 430 15/03/1860Pratt William

Daniel Knapp, rear 1/2 lot 10, concession 4; sold to William Pratt; certificate by Archibald Putnam

5 4 641 07/05/1862Pratt John

Certificate from the Registry Office in Ottawa re lot 4, concession 5; Patented to King's College 1828; College
sold east 1/2 to John Pratt April 29, 1862; No other entries on the lot

5 2 622 14/04/1848Price William

Robert Brownlee of Marlborough, sells to William Price of City of Quebec,lot 2, concession 5,  at Bytown, District
of Dalhousie

5 2 624 19/07/1851Price William

William Price appoints an attorney to sell lot 2 concession 5 to Robert Brownlee; 
Documents 624 - 631: a seies of documents which result, it seems, in the lot becoming the property of Robert
and Thomas Mackey / McKey

4 8 424 05/12/1868Prov Reg Off

From the Provincial Registers office to Commissioner of Crown Lands; re: lot 8, concession 4; there is no
evidence that a patent was issued.

4 10 431 15/03/1860Putnam Archibald

 certificate by Archibald Putnam re: sale of lot 10, concession 4 by Daniel Knapp to William Pratt

6 13 787 26/05/1841Radenhurst John

Lyon to Radenhurst; relates to lots 13 and 15, concession 6; it is as well a personal letter between friends (it
seems)

6 29 874 01/10/1861Ralph James

ffidavit of John Saunders and James Ralph that John Edwrads is in possession of  east 1/2 lot 29, concession
6, for 6 yeasr, he purchased the lot from Joseph Lawlor and only improvements are those made by John
Edwards

3 23 387 23/06/1803Rasbeck? Margaret

Original grant to Margaret  Rasbeck of Leeds;  of lot 23, concession 3; wife of Peter Rasbeck; daughter of John
Gray UEL

3 23 389 22/06/1803Rasbeck? Margaret

Location in the Surveyor General Office for Margaret Rasbeck



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
7 19 979 04/10/1820Read John

Certificate of service of John  Read as private in Flank Company of 2nd regt leeds Militia between July 1 and
December 24, 1812;

4 4 406 02/12/1854Reddick Daniel

Daniel Reddick; to Thomas Hector, Quebec; asks re: the status of lot 4, concession 4; whether for sale and the
price; reply to North Gower P.O.;

1 24 109 10/07/1791Reynolds John

Authorization to occupy lot 24, concession 1, 200 acres.

1 24 110 05/03/1795Reynolds John

Land Grant of lot 24, concession 1, 250 acres.

1 24 111 20/08/1796Reynolds John

"These are to certify that the Bearer John reynolds Served three years in His majesty ltae Regiment of Kings
rangers under the command of Major James Rogers. 
Augusta, 20th June 1796.
Thomas Sherwood,

1 24 112 18/07/1806Reynolds John

"I hereby certify that John Reynolds Served three years in His Majestys Late Regiment of Kings Rangers under
the Command of Major James Rogers. Given under my hand at Johnstown the 18 July 1806.
Stephen Burritt, J. Peace

1 24 114 12/09/1808Reynolds John

"John Reynolds is privileged as MC for the W1/2 of Lot NO 24. 1 concession of marlborough. John --?--, Sept.
12th 1808.

1 24 116 16/09/1808Reynolds John

Land Grant to John Reynolds of the township of Fredericksburgh, county of Lenox & Addington, Yeoman, late a
Private soldier in the Kings Rangers. for the  W1/2 lot 24, concession 1, 125 acres.

5 18 684 11/02/1861Robbinson William

William Robbinson and Jane Castle,widow of Henry Castle, release all of their interests in lot 18, concession 5,
to Dr. William Howey of Oxford township.

5 18 686 11/03/1861Robbinson William 2nd

Oath by William Robbinson 2nd and  John Robbinson both of Marlborough that  William Robbinson, yeoman,
late of  Goulbourn and now of North Gower, was the first settler on lot 18, concession 5, started to work on it in
1851, and that Jane Castles, widow of Henry Castles, is the sole occupant of the lot now,

5 18 686 11/03/1861Robbinson John

Oath by William Robbinson 2nd and  John Robbinson both of Marlborough that  William Robbinson, yeoman,
late of  Goulbourn and now of North Gower, was the first settler on lot 18, concession 5, started to work on it in
1851, and that Jane Castles, widow of Henry Castles, is the sole occupant of the lot now,

5 18 686 11/03/1861Robbinson William

Oath by William Robbinson 2nd and  John Robbinson both of Marlborough that  William Robbinson, yeoman,
late of  Goulbourn and now of North Gower, was the first settler on lot 18, concession 5, started to work on it in
1851, and that Jane Castles, widow of Henry Castles, is the sole occupant of the lot now,

4 22 561 07/10/1853Robert Robert

Robert Donnally;  Deposit with Crown Lands  re: occpancy in anticipation of purchasing west 1/2 lot 22,
concession 4

4 22 563 18/10/1854Robert Anderson

Robert   Anderson;  Deposit with Crown Lands  re: occpancy in anticipation of purchasing east 1/2 lot 22,
concession 4



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
3 10 347 02/10/1846Robinson James

an oath by D. Collins, John Castles and James Robinson concerning east 1/2 lot 10, concession 3;

5 18 688 27/03/1861Robinson John

Oath by John and James Robinson that there there are no improvements on the rear 1/2 of lot 18, concession 5

5 18 688 27/03/1861Robinson James

Oath by John and James Robinson that there there are no improvements on the rear 1/2 of lot 18, concession 5

5 20 697 20/12/1853Robinson Hugh

Applies to purchase rear 1/2 lot 20, concession 5

4 18 469 01/03/1853Robison JOhn

A letter from J. Durie, Ottawa Agency, to Crown Lands Commissioner, Quebec, listing 5 persons (occupants) to
whom certain lots might be sold:
John Robison W1/2 18
Patrick Fitzpatrick E1/2 18
George Shepherd E1/2 19
Henry Castles W1/2 17
Robert Stafford (?) E1/2 17

4 17 471 13/01/1853Robison William

Robert Moffitt; 
Certificate of Francis Jones, P.L.S.; re: east 1/2 lot 17, concession 4; that  he surveyed the lot at Moffitt's request;
says that in March of last year Moffitt bought the improvements from William Robison who settled on the lot in
it'snatural state about 4 years ago; Moffitt has 7 acres cleared and enclosed;
See Plan on Document 472;

4 18 479 12/11/1852Robison John

Wm. Campbell, P.L.S.; says that at John Robioosn's request he ran the center line of lot 18, concession 4; he
says that RTobison has improved about 26 acres on the west 1/2 and erected a shanty and log barn; he has
also improved 9 acres on the east 1/2 and that Patrick Fitzpatrick has also improved about 10 acres on the east
1/2 on which is a shanty erected'

4 19 514 19/08/1869Robison John

Archibald Baker asks about west 1/2 of lot 18 and east  1/2 lot 19; whether for sale and the price; says that he is
in possession from John Robison who says that he was the purchaser; he has left this part of the country;

5 20 694 14/11/1852Robison Alexander

Applies to purchase front 1/2 lot 20, concession 5

8 26 1203 04/07/1828Rockey Thos

Thomas Rockey, Richmond,  wishes to purchase clergy reserve lot 26, concession 8; July 4, 1828

8 26 1205 04/09/1835Rocky Thomas

An arrangement between Thomas Rocky and Patrick Kehoe regarding lot 26, concession 8; September 4, 1835; 
(the conditons of the agreement are obscure)

2 28 286 10/05/1833Rocky? Robert

Request to purchase lot 28; Robert Rocky?; May 10, 1833

2 19 256 11/09/1870Ross John

Abstract  Index summary;  
15/04/1850  Patent granted to Henry C. & Harriet Grant (wife)
Other names between 1850 and 1870:
Forbes Peters; Richard Peters; William Best; George Mickie?' John Ross; 
Documents 258 - 283;  many items concerning lots 19-26 in the 2nd concession;



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
4 11 437 01/02/1821Ross Alexander

Akexander  Ross, father of Catherine Bromley ; ('Brownley', see later)

6 7 767 02/04/1847Ruddock Daniel

Daniel Ruddock reuests his patent for west 1/2 lot 7, concession 6, based on his service with the Royal Artillery
Drivers. says that he located many years ago for the lot and he saw an advertizment that these lots would be
forffeited;  direct reply to Daniel Riddock, Artillery Drivers, Richmond
(there is a note on the letter that his letter was answered on April 13 and a patent is in preparation)

4 5 416 01/03/1856Ryan William

William Ryan of marlborough township; rear 1/2,  lot 5, concession 4, a clergy reserve;  transfer to Robert
Montgomery;   Hugh Montgomery of Goulbourn township, oath concerning the transaction;

1 24 92 19/10/1797Rynalds John

Report on Locations by Lewis Grant (?), Eastern District. 
Johnstown, 19th Oct. 1797.
Agreeable to yours of  date the 28th Sept, 1796, I entered Capt Hugh McDonald's name on the plan of
Marlborough for the following lots, viz, Lots No. 20, 21, 23 and 24,  1st concession;  & west half 20, 21, 23 and 24,
2nd concession, 1500 acres,  after making the following erasures from the plan, viz:  Wm. Soles, Jr., from Lot No.
20, 1 conc.; Joel Parish, from lot 21, 1 conc.; John Soles from lot 23, 1 conc.; John Rynalds from lot 24, 1 conc. 
To: David William Smith, Esq.

6 26 832 20/08/1859Sanders John

Sale by John Sanders to John Bartley of east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6

6 26 835 26/08/1859Sanders John

Affidavit of Michael Gleeson and John Connors re:  rear 1/2 of lot 26, concession 6, that George Menly (?) was
first to make improvements to the lot commencing in 1845, and that John Sanders now occupies it and has
been living on it for the past 10 years.

6 26 837 26/08/1859Sanders John

Affidavit of John Sanders re: east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6; that John Bartley was first person who made
improvements to the lot, commencing in 1850, and that he has been in possession for last 9 years

6 26 841 03/10/1862Sanders John

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

6 26 843 31/10/1849Sanders John

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

6 26 845 03/10/1861Sanders John

Affidavit by John Gorman and John Sanders re east 1/2 lot 26, concession 6, that John Bartley has been in
possession for 11 years, cleared about 15 acres,  and he acquired his interset from John Sanders who acquired
it from Doyle and Mealy

6 29 874 01/10/1861Saunders John

Affidavit of John Saunders and James Ralph that John Edwrads is in possession of  east 1/2 lot 29, concession
6, for 6 yeasr, he purchased the lot from Joseph Lawlor and only improvements are those made by John
Edwards

6 29 877 02/10/1861Saunders John

Affidavit  of John Edwards and John Saunders re: west 1/2 lot 29, concession 6, that James McEvoy is in
possession for 4 years, 6 acres cleared and improved, the clearance wasmade by him except for about 2 1/2
acres chopped by Joseph Lawlor about 6 years ago, who abandoned it without even logging it, that James



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
McEvoy is a feeble old man and the land inferior, no one else has any rights in the lot

1 19 77 09/08/1804Seelye Kezia

Land Grant, to Kezia Seelye of Elizabeth Town, Leeds county, in Johnstown, a daughter of Jeseph Seelye, a U.E.
Loyalist, loy 19 in the front concession, 200 acres. The Order-in-Council issued on 09/07/1802.

1 19 78 02/06/1802Seelye Kezia

An affidavit before   ----?--- Wright, from Elizabeth Town on June 2, 1802:
This is to certify that  --?-- Seelye did personally appear before me one of His Majesty's Justices of the Peace,
and did make oath to  the following declaration: i.e.: Shubal Seelye ---?--- one hundred acres of land in Augusta
in the fourth concession and have often heard him say that he leased (?) a lot No. 19 in marlborough in the First
Concession for Keziah his wife. 
---?----  Wright, J.P.

1 19 81 12/03/1802Seelye Kezia

Certificate of Stephen Burritt:
I hereby certify that Shubel Seelye the husbans of Kezia Seelye has frequently informed me that the Lott Number
nineteen First Concession in the Township of marlborough was petitioned for his wife Kezia Seelye and that the
Certificate which was obtained from the Land Bord was not filled(?). 
Stephen Burritt
Justice of the Peace.
Marlborough,  12th March A.D. 1802.

1 19 83 26/10/1803Seelye Kezia

Augusta, 26 Oct. 1803,
If it has  escaped your memory altering the Location on Lot No. 19, 1 concession Marlborough from Shubel
Seelye to Kezia Seelye, I will be much ob'd to you to do it and forward the description. Mr. Stegman by mistake
placed the name Shubel instead of Kezia. Kezia is the wife of Shubel and Shubel had received his land. All this
appears by Affidavit and left by me with you and which you agreed to alter when I was at York in the winter. 
Yours faihfully,
D'Arcy Boulton.

Directed to Surveyor General's Office, York.

3 6 340   /  /Service Philip

Philip Servie applies for lot 6, concession 3;
difficilt to read;

1 29 177 13/03/1828Shephard George

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

4 19 469 01/03/1853Shepherd George

A letter from J. Durie, Ottawa Agency, to Crown Lands Commissioner, Quebec, listing 5 persons (occupants) to
whom certain lots might be sold:
John Robison W1/2 18
Patrick Fitzpatrick E1/2 18
George Shepherd E1/2 19
Henry Castles W1/2 17
Robert Stafford (?) E1/2 17

4 18 481 08/11/1852Shepherd George

George Shepherd; applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19 in concession 4;
document also has signature of MIchael Gleeson (X)

4 18 484 06/12/1852Shepherd Geo

from Burritts Rapids; George Shepherd writes to John Rolph, Commissioner of Crown Lands; says he wrote to
Mr. Durie 29/10/1852. From a lst of vacant lands he selected west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19, concession 4;
long story about the situation; says that he is an old soldier with 30 years service; details about his service and
his apointment as Lockmaster  on Rideay Canal; lots are for his son; information about the son;  he is
concerned about the status of his property

Document 486, furthere comment about the status of lands in Marlborough and the fact of squatters occupying
lands.

Documents  484 - 512 concern weat 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2 lot 19, concession4;  an intricate story  which
invloves several people and results in George Shepherd quit-claimiing his interests in the lots.

Francis Jones P.L.S. surveyed the lots; a copy of the plan is included; he says that
 "Mr Robison was the first person who settled in this part of the township and must have had many difficulties to
contend with as a pioneer in the wilderness. He had to make a road for considerable distance through a swam
(sic) with little or no assistance he is an active industrious inhabitant who appears desirous of securing a home
for himself and family" 

From the Legislative Assembly, Toronto, December 4, 1868, Robert Lyon wrote to Hon. H. Richards, Court of
Crown Lands:
"I beg to enclose ............... (transfer from G. Shepherd to J. Robison of interests in west 1/2 lot 18 and east 1/2  lot
19............ ) together with a petition from Jas Taylor and numerous other respectable citizens of the same section
of the country showing the state of the land and the poverty of Robison which I can endorse, he having a large
and helpless family rendered so through sickness and other causes whilst he can do but little himself. besides
which the land is anything but good. Your favourable consideration of the petition and granting of the remission
of the interest will be doing an act of charity and justice and oblige, Your obnt Servant, Robert Lyon"

6 26 842 16/08/1859Shepherd William

Affidavit by William Shepherd that he witnessed the agreement between Thomas Doyle and John Shepherd

6 26 843 31/10/1849Shepherd William

Affidavit of John Gorman and John Bartley re west 1/2 lot 26. concession 6; that John Sanders has been in
possession for 10 years and has cleared 20 acres; that he purchased from Thomas Doyle who purchased form
George Mealy;

1 29 177 13/03/1828Shepherd Wm Henry

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

5 23 710 11/09/1827Sherwood Adiel

Certifies that lot 23, concession 5, is vacant and that no application has been made to him to purchase the lot
(from Brockville)

5 28 723 18/10/1827Sherwoof Adiel

Adiel Sherwood, Brockville, certifies that lot 27, concession 5, is apparently vacant and no application has been
made to purchase it.

7 25 1006 08/06/1827Simpson Thomas

Order-in-Council june 8, 1827 that Thomas Simpson of Brockville, a native of England, aged 38 years, resided in
Ontario since 1819, taken Oath of Allegience, has a right to 200 acres as a discharged serjeant in the 9th Regt of
Foot, shall receive lot 25, concession 7;

1 12 51 24/03/1808Siomons Eli

A report of the Locations made on March 24, 1808, in the townships of Marlborough, Wolford, North Gower and
Nepean, 15 in all.  Those in Marlborough were: Jacob Fraser, lot 11, concession 1,  200 acres;  Eli Siomons, lot
12, concession 1,  200 acres;  Rachel Buck, lot 18, concession 2, 200 acres;  Mary Smith, part of lot 10,
concessions 1 and 2;  Isaac Stokes, lot 11, concession 2, 200 acres.

7 11 932 02/02/1846Smiley John

Re: lot 11, concession 7; indifferent  land throughout and very little difference in quality

1 10 37 03/11/1854Smith Henry Jr.

From Solicitor General, Quebec; he requests a copy of the Description of the south part of the lot  including the
Broken Front.

1 10 41 29/02/1808Smith Mary

Land Grant to Mary Smith,of the township of Kingston, Wife of Samuel Smith and daughter of the late George
Buck, a U.E. Loyalist,  of  the north part of lot 10, concession 1 and the south part  of lot 10, concession 2. Based
on an Order-in-Council of  23/02/1808.

2 10 42 29/02/1808Smith Mary

Land Grant to Mary Smith,of the township of Kingston, Wife of Samuel Smith and daughter of the late George
Buck, a U.E. Loyalist,  of  the north part of lot 10, concession 1 and the south part  of lot 10, concession 2. Based
on an Order-in-Council of  23/02/1808.

1 10 51 24/03/1808Smith Mary

A report of the Locations made on March 24, 1808, in the townships of Marlborough, Wolford, North Gower and
Nepean, 15 in all.  Those in Marlborough were: Jacob Fraser, lot 11, concession 1,  200 acres;  Eli Siomons, lot
12, concession 1,  200 acres;  Rachel Buck, lot 18, concession 2, 200 acres;  Mary Smith, part of lot 10,
concessions 1 and 2;  Isaac Stokes, lot 11, concession 2, 200 acres.
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3 21 372 14/02/1832Snider Philip

reference to sale by Snider to Simeon Washburn of lot 21 on February 14, 1832

3 21 367 28/11/1803Snyder Philip

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire" The actual grant document is
#371

1 20 86 07/07/1791Soles William Jr.

Certificate of Location for William Soles Jr., 200 acres, on lot No. 20, 1st concession of  Marlborough Township,
District of Luneburg, November 7th, 1790. Surveyor's Certificate of July 7th, 1791,  signed by Theodor de Pencier,
Acting Surveyor for the District of Luneburg.

1 20 89 06/07/1791Soles William Jr.

Land Grant to William Soles the Younger, lot 20, Broken Front, 250 acres.

1 23 102 05/03/1795Soles John

Land Grant to John Soles, lot 23 includung the Broken Front, 250 acres.

1 23 106 10/07/1791Soles John

Authorization to occupy  lot 23, concession 1, 200 acres.

1 20 92 19/10/1797Soles Wm

Report on Locations by Lewis Grant (?), Eastern District. 
Johnstown, 19th Oct. 1797.
Agreeable to yours of  date the 28th Sept, 1796, I entered Capt Hugh McDonald's name on the plan of
Marlborough for the following lots, viz, Lots No. 20, 21, 23 and 24,  1st concession;  & west half 20, 21, 23 and 24,
2nd concession, 1500 acres,  after making the following erasures from the plan, viz:  Wm. Soles, Jr., from Lot No.
20, 1 conc.; Joel Parish, from lot 21, 1 conc.; John Soles from lot 23, 1 conc.; John Rynalds from lot 24, 1 conc. 
To: David William Smith, Esq.

1 23 92 19/10/1797Soles John

Report on Locations by Lewis Grant (?), Eastern District. 
Johnstown, 19th Oct. 1797.
Agreeable to yours of  date the 28th Sept, 1796, I entered Capt Hugh McDonald's name on the plan of
Marlborough for the following lots, viz, Lots No. 20, 21, 23 and 24,  1st concession;  & west half 20, 21, 23 and 24,
2nd concession, 1500 acres,  after making the following erasures from the plan, viz:  Wm. Soles, Jr., from Lot No.
20, 1 conc.; Joel Parish, from lot 21, 1 conc.; John Soles from lot 23, 1 conc.; John Rynalds from lot 24, 1 conc. 
To: David William Smith, Esq.

7 20 986 08/01/1821Spencer David

Certificate that David Spencer of Elizabethtown is entitled to grant of land based on service as a private in the
Flank Comany of the 1st Regt of Grenville Militia between June 29 and December 29, 1812

4 17 469 01/03/1853Stafford? Robert

A letter from J. Durie, Ottawa Agency, to Crown Lands Commissioner, Quebec, listing 5 persons (occupants) to
whom certain lots might be sold:
John Robison W1/2 18
Patrick Fitzpatrick E1/2 18
George Shepherd E1/2 19
Henry Castles W1/2 17
Robert Stafford (?) E1/2 17

2 22 269 30/11/1846Stephenson Joseph

from Burritts Rapids; November 30, 1846; letter stating that they have occupied certain lots for 6 yeasr and have
made improvements:   Alexander Nelson (west 22),  Joseph Stephenson (east 22), Robert Good (west 21),
Thomas Orr (west 20), and Henry Bulbeck (rear 25);   request that they be allowed to purchase;
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2 21 270 01/11/1846Stephenson JOseph

from Oxford, November 1846, Hy Burritt;' certificate that Joseph Stephenson, Alexander nelson and Robert Good,
reside on and have improved lots 20 and 22; good character, loyalty, honesty and industry

4 25 572 01/01/1834Stephenson Joseph

Henry Bulbeck and Joseph Stephenson take an oath that Kenneth Mclean has cleared and cropped 10 acres on
lot 20, concession 4. and has built a homer there in which he resides.
Before Daniel Burritt J.P.

2 11 240 03/02/1807Stoker? Sarah

Wife of Henry Stoker? and Daughter of John Emons, a U.E.L; of Kingston township, Midland district; Grant in
Marlborough township of  part of lot 11, concession 2;

2 11 51 24/03/1808Stokes Isaac

A report of the Locations made on March 24, 1808, in the townships of Marlborough, Wolford, North Gower and
Nepean, 15 in all.  Those in Marlborough were: Jacob Fraser, lot 11, concession 1,  200 acres;  Eli Siomons, lot
12, concession 1,  200 acres;  Rachel Buck, lot 18, concession 2, 200 acres;  Mary Smith, part of lot 10,
concessions 1 and 2;  Isaac Stokes, lot 11, concession 2, 200 acres.

5 3 635 15/05/1867Stuart David

David Stuart of Burrits Rapids; re: front 1/2 lot 3, concession 5; seesm to want to rent;

6 30 888 06/03/1855Suffron John

Affidavit of George Ormrod and John Suffron both of Montague township,  re: west 1/2 lot 30, concession 6, that it
is occupied by Thomas Ormrod only and that not over 8 acres chopped which 8 acres not cleared but timber
taken away; the timber on the rest of it is principally small tamarac and birch

6 6 764 23/09/1836Sumeconny? Johnn

From Brockville; statement of Johnn Wilhelm Sumeconny(?) that  "last December" he received confirmation of
his entitlement to a grant of 100 acres; he will take it on east 1/2 lot 6, concession 6; asks for the location ticket.

7 23 997 21/09/1820Sweet Allen

Ceretificate that Allen Sweet is eligible for a land grant based on his service as serjeant with Incorporated Militia
for 2 years and discharged on March 24, 1815

7 23 999 04/06/1823Sweet Allen

Certificate re: Allen Sweet  for 200 acres as a serjeant with the Incorporated Militia

6 10 775 19/02/1852Taylor Sandy

Affidavit before William Mackey, J.P.by John Thompson and Sandy Taylor, that James Taylor in possession of
east 1/2 lot 10, concession 6, for between 15 and 16(?) years

6 10 775 19/02/1852Taylor James

Affidavit before William Mackey, J.P.by John Thompson and Sandy Taylor, that James Taylor in possession of
east 1/2 lot 10, concession 6, for between 15 and 16(?) years

6 10 777 28/12/1864Taylor James

James Taylor sells east 1/2 lot 10, concession 6; to John Taylor

7 3 899 13/01/1853Taylor Henry

Henry Taylor applies to purchase west 1/2 lot 3, concession 7;

7 3 901 23/06/1856Taylor Henry

Henry Taylor and wife, Ann, transfer south-west 1/2 lot 3, concession 7  to Thomas Johnston, 100 acres;

7 3 901 23/03/1856Taylor Ann

Henry Taylor and wife, Ann, transfer south-west 1/2 lot 3, concession 7  to Thomas Johnston, 100 acres;

7 9 915 06/04/1854Taylor Alexander

Alexander Taylor sells to James Kettles, front 1/2 lot 9, concession 7;
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8 4 1051 18/09/1861Taylor William

Affidavit of Robert Montgomery and William Taylor, September 18, 1861, that John Leviston was in possession of
front 1/2 lot 4, concession 8, and that he has cleared 5 - 8  acres cleared and fenced;

2 9 232 21/07/1871Templeton Samuel

Documents 231,232
Abstract of title for lot 9, concession2; 
Patent   March 14, 1798, Robert I.D. Gray
Thomas McDermott, James Mulvagh, Samuel Templeton, Sr.; Elizabeth Boyd;

3 19 367 28/11/1803Thomas William

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

6 27 850 30/01/1869Thomas Samuel

Registry Office, Abstract of Title for west !/2 lot 27, concession 6; these names on title
Samuel Thomas, James Byrnes, Thomas Buck, Bernard Copnlin, mary Ann Gorman, Daniel McDermott, Lucius
Gleeson; John McIntyre & ux, Patrick Daley & ux;  (Mrs. McIntyre was wife of late Thomas Buck, 

6 27 863 20/10/1827Thomas Samuel

Location Ticket to Samuel Thomas for west 1/2 lot 27, concession 6, based on his service as private with
Captain  Adam's Troop of provincial Light Dragoons;

6 27 865 08/05/1821Thomas Samuel

Certificate of service of Samuel Thomas as a private with Captain Adam's Troop of Provincial Light Dragoons

6 27 867 08/09/1929Thomas Samuel

Affidavit of Henry Bulbeck and Samuel Halfpenny that Samuel Thomas has cleared 5 acres of land and built a
house on west 1/2 lot 27. concession 6

6 27 868 22/01/1830Thomas Samuel

Grant to Samuel THomas of Augusta, as private in Captain Adam's Troop of Provincial Light Dragoons, west 1/2
lot 27, concession 6

4 12 451 06/01/1835Thompkins Jesse

Documents 450 - 453
Confirms service of  Jesse Thompkin of Oxford township with the Flank Company of Grenville Militia on actual
service in 1812;

4 12 453 04/11/1835Thompkins Jesse

Jesse   Thompkins, of Oxford, appoints Stephen Burritt, the younger, as his attorney to locate 100 cres for his
service as a private in Flank Company of Second Regiment Grenville Militia; witness William Burritt

6 10 775 19/02/1852Thompson John

Affidavit before William Mackey, J.P.by John Thompson and Sandy Taylor, that James Taylor in possession of
east 1/2 lot 10, concession 6, for between 15 and 16(?) years

6 10 780 29/05/1854Thompson John

Affidavit by John and James Bradley that John THompson in possession of west 1/2 lot 10, concesson 6 . has
been settled on it for 10 years and was the first settler

7 9 922 27/10/1846Tremble William

Thomas Morrison sold to William Trimble rear 1/2 lot 9, concession 7;

8 7 1090 25/10/1861Tremble William

Affidavit by George Macartney and Andrew Nixon re: front 1/2 lot 7, concession that William Tremble is the only
occupant, at least 5 acres cleared and no other improvements



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 -  1142 - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

7 17 959 02/10/1861Trimble William

Affidavit of William Trimble and John Kenny(?) re: condition of lot 17, concession 7, (rocky and swamp)

8 7 1094 03/05/1871Trimble William

William Trimble asks how much is due on front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 -1142  - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1096 20/05/1871Trimble Wm

Letter of May 21, 1871 from Crown Lands to Carleton County treasurer: re: front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8; sold to
William Trimble at auction Oct 1, 1861, and he is in occupation; the treasuruer was noified in 1853 that the
previous grantee had surrendered his title to the Crown so the slae ".. appears to have been made in error.."

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1099 02/06/1871Trimble William

Letter form William Cowan to Crown Lands office re: west 1/2 lot 7, concession 8; summarizes the facts of the
case and regards his title as good;

Note: this problem concerning the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8 occupies documents 1084 - 1142   - --the
matter was difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 7 1140 20/01/1873Trimble James

This is the last document concerning the battle over the title to front 1/2 lot 7, concession 8;  the matter was
difficult to solve and the final result was not clear from the documents

8 10 1149 05/03/1853Trimble William

Andrew Nixon sells to William Trimble front 1/2 lot 10, concession 8;

1 13 61 20/10/1798Valentine Catherine

Grant of lots 13 & 14, Broken Front;  lots 13 & 14, concession 1 & 2;  part of lots 13 & 14, concession 3; in all
about 1200 acres.

4 30 607 17/08/1808Vancamp John

Grant to John Vancamp, Matilda township, Dundas county, lot 30, concession 4

4 30 609 30/09/1809Vancamp John

Report on the Location of John Vancamp on lot 30, concession 4

4 20 558 11/10/1853Waddle Robert

Robert Waddle; Deposit with Crown Lands  re: occpancy in anticipation of purchasing west 1/2 lot 20,
concession 4

1 27 152 08/10/1846Waldo Volney

Certificat signed by Volney Waldo, at Bytown, october 1, 1846, that the quantity of land reserved by the Ordnance
department  is wholly on the west side of the lot.

1 27 153 19/10/1846Waldo Volney

Receipt of payment from Volney Waldo for rent in full to September 1846 on east 1/2 lot 27, concession 1.

1 27 155 11/08/1849Waldo Volney

Several documents, (155, 156, 157, 158 and 159), including a plan of parts of lots 27 and 28, concerning the
amount of land reserved by the Ordnance Department  for Canal purposes.
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1 27 160 01/09/1849Waldo Volney

Land Grant to Volney Waldo of east 1/2 lot 27, concession 1, 100 acres, a Clergy Reserve.

6 5 753 01/04/1854Wallace Andrew

Thomas Murphy sells to Andrew Wallace south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6, a Clergy Reserve; Noble Wallace signed
as a witness

6 5 753 01/04/1854Wallace Noble

Thomas Murphy sells to Andrew Wallace south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6, a Clergy Reserve; Noble Wallace signed
as a witness

6 5 761 13/08/1855Wallace Andrew

Affidavit of Fergus Baxter and Adam Johnston re: front 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; first improvements which were
trifling were made by Patrick Farrell in 1843;  in 1847 Patrick Farrell sold to Thomas Murphy who was the first to
build on the lot; Farrell left the township in 1847 and is supposed to be in the USA; William Caldwell is in
possession having purchased the goodwill of the lot from Andrew  William Mackey J.P.

6 5 757 06/08/1855Wallis Robert

Andrew Wallace sells to William Caldwell south 1/2 lot 5, concession 6; Robert Wallis signs as witness

3 21 372 14/02/1832Washburn Simeon

reference to sale by Snider to Simeon Washburn of lot 21 on February 14, 1832

7 30 1031 10/12/1852Watchorn Henry

difficult to read) seems to be an enquiry by Henry Watchorn, of Franktown, about rear 1/2 lot 30, concession 7;
the reply to be directed to James Burns, Franktown, for Watchorn

7 30 1034 07/03/1853Watchorn Henry

Henry Watchorn of Montague writes to Thos' Hector, Commissioner of Crown Lands at Quebec, about his lot for
which he has paid 4 pounds which was acknowledged. Reply is to be directed to Franktown P.O.

7 30 1036 10/01/1853Watchorn Henry

Henry Watchorn writes from Burritts Rapids to Commissioner of Crown Lands on January 10, 1853; re: rear 1/2
lot 30, concession 7; further problems with the title

2 29 304 23/02/1843Weedmark Fredersik

Document 304; February 23, 1843; lease by Canada Company to Frederick Weedmark, the Younger;  of west 1/2
lot 29.

3 24 367 28/11/1803Wees? Peter

"Locations made in the Surveyor Generals Office the 28th and 29th November, 1803, under the New Regulations
-  by the Sons and Daughters of persons who adhered to the Unity of the Empire"

1 29 177 13/03/1828Weidmark Frederick

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
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A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.

1 27 146 28/06/1834White John H

Letter from John H White, Lock  Master, Burritts Rapids,  to Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Crown Lands to
say that he had purchased the east 1/2 of lot 27, concession 1, from Stephen Burritt, Jr., and he undertakes to
pay back rent and instalments on the purchase price;  asks that his name be enterd for the lot and that he
receive a letter of Occupation.

1 27 148 25/08/1834White John H

Letter to Peter Robinson, Commissioner of Crown Lands, asking for a response to his letter of June 28.

8 15 1158 09/10/1861White William

William White sells west 1/2 lot 15, concession 8 to Jeremiah Evans October 9, 1861

1 28 168 16/05/1835Wiedmark Frederick

Letter to Peter Robinson, "Agent Canada Comm. U.C., Toronto", asking for a reply to a previous letter in which he
said that he had been the lessee and had kept the rent paid up, and he is still the occupant, and now wishes to
buy it.  An attached note of June 10, 1835, indicates that  he was told to apply to Colonel Hill (?) (Wells?).

8 5 1071 11/12/1856Williams Edward

Affidavit by William Pettapiece and Edward Williams, 11/12/1856, that  lot 5, concession 8 was first occupied by
Gabriel Montgomery  about 1830, that the first improvements were in 1830 consisting of a small log house
(16x18 feet) and small barn (28 x 30 feet);  and 20 acres cleard

2 21 273 10/10/1882Wilson Thomas

October 10, 1882; lease from Elizabeth Mahan, to Thomas Wilson, west 1/2 lot 21; for 3 years; subject  to many
conditions;  further lease in 1886;

6 30 885 20/11/1854Wright Susan

Replies to letter of  Thomas Hector (Crown Lands, Quebec) that he searched for Susan Wright and found that
she was dead. anmd the son's(?) right was given to D.B. Ford of 'Biggeville"(?), I went to D.B. Ford and finding
that his  - - - - - -  ? - - - - - - - - I went to Bytown and search the tresry office and finding no taxes was ever paid on
the lot.  he lives on the lot and wants to purchase it

1 29 177 13/03/1828Young Adoniram

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.



Doc DateFamname Forename Con Lot
1 29 177 13/03/1828Young Stephen

A series of documents (176 - 206), the substance of which seems to be that Job Olmsted sold his interests in lot
29 to Adoniram B. Young and then left the province for the U.S.;  Young was unable to establish his rights in the
lot and submitted certificates from several persons who were purported to know the circumstances of the case.
(Stephen Burritt, Henry Burritt, Asahel Hurd, Daniel Burritt). There is:
a Certificate of 26/06/1828  that  Adoniram B. Young had taken the Oath of Allegiance; 
An acceptance (08/06/1829) by Young of the Lands Department's price for the lot;
A letter from Young, (25/06/1830),  pressing his case since (he says) he had done a great deal of work on the lot,
he had a large family depending on him, and does not want to lose all the work that he has done on it,
A Certificate of  April 29, 1846, from Jane Young, widow of the Late Adoniram Young, that she makes no dower
claim on the Broken Front of Lot 29, concession 1,
An affidavit by Henry James and Frederick Weidmark as to the improvements that Stephen Young has made to
the Broken Front of lot 29, concession 1, and that he had been the occupant for four years,
The sale on 17/05/1851 by Stephen Young to Aaron Merrick of fourteen acres on the Broken Front of Lot 29,
concession 1,
A Quit Claim on 01/04/1851 by Jane Young, widow, to George Shephard in respect of the west 1/2 of lot 29,
concession 1. 
A transfer on 16/06/1855, by George Shephard, to William Henry Shephard, of his interests in lot 29. 
A transfer on 29/07/1859, by William Henry Shaphard to William McGregor of Kemptville, of his interests in the lot.


